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Corporate Profile

Painted Pony is a publicly-traded natural gas corporation based

in Western Canada. The Corporation is primarily focused on the
development of natural gas and natural gas liquids from the Montney
formation in Northeast British Columbia. Painted Pony's common shares
trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “PONY".

Annual General Meeting

Painted Pony Energy Ltd. invites shareholders and interested parties to
attend its Annual General Meeting to be held in the Bennett Room at the
Ranchmen’s Club, 710 - 13th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, at 3:00 pm
(Calgary time], on May 9, 2019. Shareholders not attending are encouraged
to complete the voting instruction form and deliver it in accordance with
the instructions therein at their earliest convenience.

“Plowing through the Challenges”

- By Paul Van Ginkel

Cover painting “Plowing through the Challenges®, oil on canvas by Paul Van Ginkel
www.paulvanginkel.com




Financial and
Operating Highlights

2018
Petroleum and natural gas revenue " 404.4 249.2 62 %
Cash flows from operating activities 169.0 106.9 58 %
Per share - basic @@ 1.05 0.76 38 %
Per share - diluted “® 0.99 0.74 34 %
Adjusted funds flow from operations ? 174.6 109.2 60 %
Per share - basic 1.08 0.78 38 %
Per share - diluted ¥ 1.03 0.76 36 %
Net income and comprehensive income 7.1 122.4 (94%)
Per share - basic @ 0.04 0.87 (95%)
Net income and comprehensive income - diluted 7.1 123.2 (94%)
Per share - diluted ¥ 0.04 0.85 (95%])
Capital expenditures 154.4 302.6 (49%)
Working capital 32.9 33.0 — %
Bank debt 163.1 149.2 9%
Senior notes 143.1 141.6 1%
Convertible debentures - liability 46.1 44.9 3%
Net debt ¢ 348.5 363.9 (4%)
Total assets 2,055.4 2,031.6 1%
Shares outstanding (millions) 161.0 161.0 — %
Basic weighted-average shares (millions) 161.0 140.7 14 %
Fully diluted weighted-average shares (millions) 169.9 1441 18 %
Daily production volumes
Natural gas (MMcf/d) 316.5 235.8 34 %
Natural gas liquids (bbls/d) 5,128 3,587 43 %
Total (MMcfe/d) 347.3 257.3 35 %
Total (boe/d] 57,879 42,882 35%
Realized commodity prices before financial risk
management contracts
Natural gas ($/Mcf) 2.54 2.13 19 %
Natural gas liquids ($/bbl) 59.43 50.53 18 %
Total ($/Mcfe) 3.19 2.65 20 %
Operating netbacks ($/Mcfe) 2.16 2.01 7%
Corporate netbacks ($/Mcfe] (WAl 1.54 1%

. Before royalties.

. Adjusted funds flow from operations and adjusted funds flow from operations per share (basic and diluted) are non-GAAP measures used to represent cash flow from operating
activities before the effects of changes in non-cash working capital and decommissioning expenditures. Adjusted funds flow from operations per share is calculated by dividing
adjusted funds flow from operations by the weighted average number of basic or diluted shares outstanding in the period. See “Non-GAAP Measures” in Management Discussion
and Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2018

. Basic per share information is calculated on the basis of the weighted average number of shares outstanding in the period.

. Diluted per share information reflects the potential dilutive effect of stock options and convertible debentures.

Working capital is a non-GAAP measure calculated as current assets less current liabilities. See “Non-GAAP Measures” in Management Discussion and Analysis for the year
ended December 31, 2018.

6. Net debt is a non-GAAP measure calculated as bank debt, senior notes, liability portion of convertible debentures, and working capital, adjusted for the net current portion of fair

value of risk management contracts and current portion of finance lease obligation.

7. Operating netbacks is a non-GAAP measure calculated on a per unit basis as natural gas and natural gas liquids revenues, adjusted for realized gains or losses on risk
management contracts, less royalties, operating expenses and transportation expenses. Corporate netback is calculated as operating netback less finance lease expense per unit.
See "Non-GAAP Measures” and “Operating and Corporate Netbacks” in Management Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2018.

. Cash flows from operating activities per share - basic and diluted are non-GAAP measures calculated by dividing cash flows from operating activities by the weighted average
of basic or diluted shares outstanding in the period.
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Message
to Shareholders

Despite predictions coming into 2018 of a very
challenging year, we delivered record adjusted
funds flow per share, reduced debt, cut costs,
and grew production and PDP reserves
year-over-year. We realized a natural gas
price of $2.54/Mcf in 2018 which significantly
exceeded the average natural gas price at the
main Canadian sales hub at AECO (5A] that
averaged just $1.50/Mcf for the year. Our much
higher realized natural gas price was made
possible through the market diversification
strategy we began pursuing several years

ago in response to our growing concern

about being tied to just two sales locations.
Natural gas strip prices in western Canada
remain low and that has resulted in another
year of forecasted lower capital investment by
industry, which we believe is likely to result

in lower overall natural gas production levels
from industry. We will continue to diversify
our sales points while also seeking long-term
sales contracts with large-scale end-users, as
we did with our 14 year supply contract with
Methanex Corporation.

Cold weather, slowing supply growth, and
increasing US exports have forced natural gas
storage levels well below the 5-year average in
Canada and in the US. We believe this positions
Painted Pony for better realized prices than

the AECO 5A daily spot price in 2019. It is
because of this economic backdrop that we
plan, once again, to constrain capital spending
to internally generated adjusted funds flow,
while retaining our optimism for the future of
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clean, energy efficient Canadian natural gas.
We stated clearly in late 2017 that any adjusted
funds flow in excess of capital spending in
2018 would be used to reduce debt levels,
which | am pleased to report we did. We believe
2019 is not the time to grow our production,
rather it is a time to continue to ‘Plow Through
The Challenges’, as illustrated in our annual
painting on the cover of this report.

Sales Diversification

Our 2018 adjusted funds flow of $1.08 per share
was a record for us and was delivered through
a combination of increased production volumes,
capital discipline, and diversification of sales
points. We structured a sales diversification
portfolio for 2018 that included fixed price and
basis contracts, and firm transportation that
took Painted Pony natural gas to the Dawn
market in southern Ontario and to the Sumas
sales hub on the BC / Washington state border
as well as to Station 2 and AECO as well as our
contract with Methanex Corporation.

In October 2018, LNG Canada announced a
positive Final Investment Decision ["FID")

on the construction of their West Coast LNG
project. This was a great day for Canada, for
the Canadian natural gas industry, and for
Painted Pony. With construction well under-
way in Kitimat, BC and on the Coastal GaslLink
Pipeline, we continue to expect that some
portion of gas supply for LNG Canada will be
sourced by producers in British Columbia.
Long-term LNG contracts would fit into our



d d Success is the sum of
small efforts, repeated
day in and day out Q¥

-- Robert Collier

focus on delivery diversity and our strategy of
increasing profitability through direct sales
diversification.

Capital Expenditures

Our 2018 capital investment program totaled
approximately $154 million, which was

$21 million less than our 2018 adjusted funds
flow of $175 million. Activities included the
drilling of 22 (22.0 net] wells, the completion
of 28 (28.0 net] wells and investment into
associated facilities and infrastructure.

We stated in early 2018 that we would limit
2018 capital spending to match adjusted funds
flow and that any cash generated above our
planned capital spending would be used to
reduce debt. | am proud that through prudent
and disciplined capital spending we were able
to reduce our net-debt from the third quarter
of 2018 to the end of the fourth quarter

of 2018 by $37 million, a change of 10%.

Health, Safety and Environment

| cannot stress enough the importance

we place on the health and safety of our
employees and contractors at Painted Pony
as well as protection of the environment.

We foster a culture of safe work, making it a
top priority in all that we do. We are proud that
in 2018 we had no material incidents and zero
lost time incidents. Our total recordable injury
frequency averaged 0.70 in 2018 compared to
an industry average of 0.75. Never satisfied
with the status quo, work is ongoing to improve
our overall performance. Recent initiatives

include hazard identification and near-miss
reporting, integrity management plans for
regulatory compliance and we will soon
implement a new preventative maintenance
program. We continue to focus significant
effort on water management initiatives,
including recycling an average of 93% of water
from completions operations over the past
three years.

Reserves Growth

In 2018, we focused our capital program on
converting our Total Proved Plus Probable
reserves to Proved Developed Producing
reserves and grew this reserves category

by 19% to approximately 1.0 Tcfe. As we
continuously improve the cost effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, our average reserves
bookings per well continues to increase.

We were able to lower the cost of bringing

on future production by reducing future
development capital in both the Total Proved
Plus Probable and the Total Proved categories.
In the Total Proved Plus Probable category
alone, we were able to reduce the future
development capital requirements by over
$650 million, and over $300 million in

Total Proved reserves. This is a significant
accomplishment as larger reserve bookings per
well means fewer wells needed to develop the
same amount of reserves. Our recycle ratio is
a great measure of our ability to invest capital
efficiently. Our recycle ratio is calculated by
dividing the annual corporate netback of
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35%

Growth in Annual
Average Daily
Production Volumes

$1.71/Mcfe by the annual finding, development
and acquisition cost of $0.55/Mcfe. Our Proved
Developed Producing recycle ratio of 3.1x is
industry leading and is proof of the robustness
of our assets in both the near and long term.

Production Growth

We delivered 35% annual production growth
over our 2017 annual average daily production
volumes, averaging 347 MMcfe/d

(57,879 boe/d) during 2018. Also notable was
the 43% increase in our average daily liquids
volumes of 5,128 bbls/d in 2018, compared to
our 2017 average daily liquids volumes

of 3,587 bbls/d. We continue to face low
natural gas prices on the forward strip in
western Canada and as a result we have
decided to allow production volumes

to reduce by approximately 4% in 2019 to
preserve financial flexibility. While we are
forecasting slightly lower production volumes
this year, | think it is important to reflect

back on just how far we have come over the
past 3 years. In 2016 we generated adjusted
funds flow of $0.53 per share on 139 MMcfe/d
(23,204 boe/d) or 1.39 MMcfe/d per share. In
2018 we generated adjusted funds flow

of $1.08 per share on 347 MMcfe/d

(57,879 boe/d) or 2.16 MMcfe/d per share.

| believe our production growth of over

149% and the corresponding adjusted funds
flow per share growth of 104% during the
past 3 years speaks for itself. | think our track
record of rapid production growth
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2018 Adjusted
funds flow

$1 75Million

($1.08 per share basic])

Is compelling for our future as demand for
western Canadian natural gas increases.

2019 and Forward

Despite the headwinds we have faced over
the past few years both in western Canadian
natural gas pricing and in the capital markets,

we remain focused on creating
shareholder value through
strong adjusted funds flow per
share growth and through the
pursuit of strategies that will
continue to produce profitability
for Painted Pony shareholders
in the coming years.

Finally, a sincere thank you to the staff and
Board of Directors at Painted Pony for another
year of jobs well done. We also would like to
thank our First Nations neighbours, the people
of BC, service providers and shareholders for
your continued support of Painted Pony Energy.

“signed”
Patrick R. Ward
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 21, 2019



Advisories

Boe Conversions: Barrel of oil equivalent ("bee”) amounts have been calculated by using the conversion ratio of six thousand cubic feet (6 Mcf] of natural gas to
one barrel of oil (1 bbl). Boe amounts may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. A boe conversion ratio of 6 Mcf to 1 bbl is based on an energy equivalency
conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not represent a value equivalency at the wellhead.

Mcfe Conversions: Thousands of cubic feet of gas equivalent ("Mcfe”) amounts have been calculated by using the conversion ratio of one barrel of oil (1 bbl] to six
thousand cubic feet (6 Mcf] of natural gas. Mcfe amounts may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. A conversion ratio of 1 bbl to 6 Mcf is based on an energy
equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not represent a value equivalency at the wellhead.

Forward-Looking Information: This message to shareholders section contains certain forward-looking information and forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Canadian securities laws (collectively, “forward-looking information”). Forward-looking information relates to future events or future performance and is
based upon the Corporation’s current internal expectations, estimates, projections, assumptions and beliefs. All information other than historical fact is forward-
looking information. Information relating to “reserves” or “resources” is forward-looking as it involves the implied assessment, based on certain estimates and
assumptions, that the reserves or resources exist in the quantities estimated and that they will be commercially viable to produce in the future. Words such as “plan”,
“expect”, “intend”, "believe”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “may”, "will", “could”, “potential’, and other similar words that indicate events or conditions may occur are
intended to identify forward-looking information. This message to shareholders section contains forward-looking information, including, without limitation, information
relating to: forecasted lower capital investment by industry, assumptions regarding overall natural gas production levels and realized prices, future capital spending,
forecasted production volumes, and estimates regarding the Corporation’s growth.

Undue reliance should not be placed on forward-looking information, as there can be no assurance that the plans, intentions or expectations on which they are based
will occur. Although the Corporation’s management believes that the expectations in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that
such expectations will prove to be correct.

Forward-looking information is based on estimates and opinions of management at the time the information is presented. The Corporation is not under any duty to, nor
will it, update the forward-looking information after the date of this document to revise such information to actual results or to changes in the Corporation’s plans or
expectations, except as required by applicable securities laws.

Any “financial outlook” contained in this message to shareholders section, as such term is defined by applicable securities laws, is provided for the purpose of
providing information about management’s current expectations and plans relating to the future. Readers are cautioned that reliance on such information may not be
appropriate for other purposes.

Non-GAAP Measures: This message makes reference to the terms “adjusted funds flow”, “adjusted funds flow per share”, and “corporate netback” which do not have
standardized meanings prescribed by IFRS and therefore may not be comparable with the calculation of similar measures presented by other issuers. Management

of the Corporation believes these measures are useful supplemental measures of the net position of current assets and current liabilities of the Corporation and the
profitability relative to commodity prices. Readers are cautioned, however, that these measures should not be construed as alternatives to other terms such as current
and long-term debt or comprehensive income determined in accordance with IFRS as measures of performance. The Corporation’s method of calculating these non-
GAAP measures may differ from other companies, and accordingly, may not be comparable to similar measures used by other entities.

Management uses “adjusted funds flow” to analyze operating performance and considers adjusted funds flow to be a key measure as it demonstrates the Corporation’s
ability to generate the cash necessary to fund future capital investment and to repay debt. Adjusted funds flow denotes cash flow from operating activities before the
effects of changes in non-cash working capital and decommissioning expenditures. "Adjusted funds flow from operations per share” is calculated using the basic and
diluted weighted average number of shares for the period. These terms should not be considered alternatives to, or more meaningful than, cash flows from operating
activities as determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the Corporation’s performance.

"Corporate netback” is used as a supplemental measure of the Corporation’s profitability relative to commodity prices. Corporate netback is calculated on a per
unit basis as natural gas and natural gas liquids revenues, adjusted for realized gains or losses on risk management contracts, less royalties, operating expenses,
transportation costs and finance lease expense. This term should not be considered alternatives to, or more meaningful than net income (loss) and comprehensive
income (loss) as determined in accordance with IRFS

Independent Reserves Evaluation: GLJ Petroleum Consultants ("6LJ"), independent qualified reserves evaluators of Calgary, Alberta, prepared a reserves estimation
and economic evaluation of the Corporation’s oil and natural gas properties effective December 31, 2018, which is contained in a report dated March 5, 2019

(the "2018 Reserves Report"). GLJ prepared reserves estimations and economic evaluations of the Corporation’s reserves effective December 31, 2018. The 2018
Reserves Report and the prior reserves evaluation were prepared in accordance with the standards contained in the Canadian Oil & Gas Evaluation Handbook and
National Instrument 51-101 - Standards of Disclosure for Qil and Gas Activities, which were in effect at the time of the evaluation.

Reserves Categories: Reserves means estimated remaining quantities of oil and natural gas and related substances anticipated to be recoverable from known
accumulations, as of a given date, based on the analysis of drilling, geological, geophysical and engineering data; the use of established technology; and specified
economic conditions, which are generally accepted as being reasonable. Reserves are classified according to the degree of certainty associated with the estimates:

* Proved Reserves are those reserves that can be estimated with a high degree of certainty to be recoverable. It is likely that the actual remaining
quantities recovered will exceed the estimated proved reserves; and

* Probable Reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain to be recovered than proved reserves. It is equally likely that the actual remaining
quantities recovered will be greater or less than the sum of the estimated proved plus probable reserves.

Each of the reserves categories (proved, probable and possible] may be divided into developed and undeveloped categories:

* Developed Reserves are those reserves that are expected to be recovered from existing wells and installed facilities or, if facilities have not been
installed, that would involve a low expenditure (e.g. when compared to the cost of drilling a well) to put the reserves on production. The developed
category may be subdivided into producing and non-producing.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") of the financial results of Painted Pony Energy Ltd. ("Painted
Fony” or the "Corporation”) should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes thereto for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 ("the Annual Financial Statements”). This commentary is dated March &,
2018,

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").
The financial data presented is in accordance with IFRS in Canadian dollars, exceptwhere indicated otherwise. These documents
and additional information about Painted Pony, including its Annual Information Form ("AIF) for the year ended December 31,
2018, are available under the Corporation’s profile on SEDAR at www.sedarcom and on the Corporation’s website at
www. paintedpony. ca.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

Fainted Pony is a publicly traded corporation focused on the production of natural gas and natural gas liquids ("NGLs") from the
Montney formation in northeast British Columbia. The common shares of Painted Pony ("Common Shares”) trade on the Toronto
Stock Exchange ("TSX") under the symbol *“PONY". The Corporation’'s head office is located at Suite 1200, 520 - 3 Avenue SW,
Calgary, Alberta.

NON-GAAP MEASURES

This MD&A contains the terms “adjusted funds flow from operations”, “adjusted funds flow from operations per share”, “cash flows
from operating activities per share”, “working capital (deficiency)”, “net debt’, “income before taxes, unrealized gains (losses) on
risk management contracts and acquisition costs”, and “operating and corporate netbacks”, which do not have standardized

meanings prescribed by IFRS and therefore may not be comparable with the calculation of similar measures presented by other
issuers.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities Per Share, Adjusted Funds Flow from Operations and Adjusted Funds flow from
Operations per Share

Management uses “adjusted funds flow from operations” to analyze operating performance and considers adjusted funds flow
from operations to be a key measure as it demonstrates the Corporation's ability to generate the cash necessary to fund future
capital investment and to repay debt. Adjusted funds flow from operations denctes cash flow from cperating activities before the
effects of changes in non-cash working capital and decommissioning expenditures. “Adjusted funds flow from operations per
share” and “cash flows from operating activities per share” are calculated using the basic and diluted weighted average number
of shares forthe period. These terms should not be considered alternatives to, or more meaningful than, cash flows from operating
activities as determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the Corporation’'s performance. The Corporation reconciles
each of adjusted funds flow from operations, adjusted funds flow from operations pershare and cash flows from operating activities
per share to cash flows from operating activities, which is the most directly comparable measure calculated in accordance with
IFRS, as follows:

Three months ended Years ended
December 31, December 31,
($000s, except per share) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities 48,475 2747 169,035 106,817
Changes in non-cash working capital 10,228 8212 5,604 2,287
Adjusted funds flow from operations 58,703 35,629 174,639 109,204
Cash flows from operating activities per share (§%5hare):
Basic 0.30 017 1.05 0.76
Diluted 0.29 0.16 0.99 0.74
Adjusted funds flow from operations per share (§/share):
Basic 0.36 0.2z 1.08 0.78
Diluted 0.35 0.21 1.03 0.76

Woerking Capital and Net Debt

Management uses “working capital” and “net debt” as useful supplemental measures of the liquidity of the Corporation. Working
capital is caleulated as current assets less current liabilities. Net debt is calculated as bank debt, senior notes, liability portion of
convertible debentures, and waorking capital, adjusted for the net current portion of the fair value of risk management contracts
and current portion of the finance lease obligation. These terms should not be considered alternatives to, or more meaningful
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than, current and long-term debt as determined in accordance with IFRS. The following table summarizes the Corporation's
calculations of working capital and net debt:

As at (§000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Current assets 92,976 105,795
Current liabilities (60,086) (72,770)
Working capital 32,890 33,025
Current portion of fair value of risk management contracts (net) (34,685) (64,453)
Current portion of finance lease obligation 5,680 3,282
Bank debt (163,140) (149,228)
Senior notes (143,105) (141,613)
Convertible debentures - liability (46,113) (44 BET)
Met debt (348,473) (363,884}

Income Before Taxes, Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Risk Management Contracts and Acquisition Costs

Management uses “income before taxes, unrealized gains (losses) on risk management contracts and acquisition costs"to analyze
the ongoing operational activities of the Corporation before taking into account taxes, acquisition costs and the non-cash effects
of changes in the fair value of risk management contracts. This term should not be considered an alternative to, or mare meaningful
than income before taxes as determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the Corporation's performance. The
Corporation reconciles income before taxes, unrealized gains (losses) on risk management contracts and acquisition costs, to
income before taxes, which is the most directly comparable measure calculated in accordance with IFRS, as follows:

Three months ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

(F000s) 2018 2017 2018 2017

Income before taxes 85,847 51,596 10,196 167,783

Unrealized (gain) loss on risk management contracts (53,862) (42,384) 48,608 (146 485)

Costs on acquisition of UGR Blair Creek Lid. — — — 2,487
Income before taxes, unrealized gains (losses) on

rsk management contracts and acquisition costs 31,985 9212 58,804 26,815

Operating and Corporate Netbacks

Management uses “operating netbacks™ as a supplemental measure of the Corporation's profitability relative to commodity prices.
COperating netbacks are calculated on a per unit basis as natural gas and NGL revenues, adjusted for realized gains or losses
on risk management contracts, less royalties, operating expenses and transportation expenses. Corporate netbacks is used as
a supplemental measure of the Corporation’s profitability after taking into consideration the costs associated with the finance
lease. These terms should not be considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than net income (loss) and comprehensive
income (loss) as determined in accordance with IFRS. Please refer to "Operating and Corporate Netbacks” for the calculation of
these measures.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - OVERVIEW

Results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2018, compared to December 31, 2017, continue to highlight an increase
in production volumes through organic growth and incremental value from market diversification practices. With an increase in
volumes, the Corporation increased its adjusted funds flow from operations for the year ended December 31, 2018 by 60% to
$174.6 million (31.08/share), compared to the year ended December 31, 2017 for which adjusted funds flow from operations was
$109.2 million ($0.78/share).

Painted Pony's exposure to low commeodity prices was mitigated during the year ended December 31, 2018 by risk management
contracts that resultedin a $38.7 million realized gain ($0.30/Mcfe). Painted Pony's operating netback was 32.16/Mcfe, anincrease
of 7% over the operating netback of $2.01/Mcfe forthe year ended December 31, 2017, As at December 31, 2018, the Corporation
has executed fixed price risk management contracts on 123 MMcfld of natural gas and 3,060 bbl/d of NGL production for 2018,
The Corporation has expanded into new markets as part of its long term sales point diversification strategy, including the AECO,
Dawn, 3umas and Nymex markets, to receive a premium over the AECO (5A) benchmark price. These markets continue to
provide incremental operating netbacks to the Corporation. This is evidenced by the Corporation realizing increased natural gas
prices from 2017 to 2018 of 19%.
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The capital program for the fourth quarter of 2018 was 519.2 millien, including $17.1 millien for drilling and completion costs. For
the year ended December 31, 2018, the capital program was $154.4 millien including $127.6 million for drilling and completion
costs. During the three months and year ended December 31, 2018 the Corporationdrilled 1 (1.0 net)and 22 (22.0 net) respectively,
and completed 5 (5.0 net) and 28 (28.0 net) respectively, Montney natural gas wells. The planned capital program for 2019 is
currently estimated between 595 and 3110 million, and is anticipated to include 19 (19.0 net) Montney horizontal natural gas wells
drilled and 18 (18.0 net) completed,

At December 31, 2018, the Corporation's syndicate provided a credit facility of $400 millien.
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES, ADJUSTED FUNDS FLOW FROM OPERATIONS AND NET INCOME

For the fourth quarter of 2018, cash flows from operating activities and adjusted funds flow from operations increased to $48.5
million and $58.7 million, respectively, compared to cash flows from operating activities of $27.4 million and adjusted funds flow
from operations of 3356 million in the fourth quarter of 2017, These respective increases are a result of a 38% increase in realized
natural gas prices (including realized gains on hedges), partially offset by an increase in transportation expenses per unit,

For the year ended December 31, 2018, cash flows from operating activities and adjusted funds flow from operations increased
te $169.0 million and $174.6 million, respectively, compared to cash flows from operating activities of $108.9 million and adjusted
funds flow from operations of $109.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2017. These increases are a result of a 35%
increase in production velumes and higher realized natural gas and natural gas liquid prices compared to 2017, partially offset
by an increase in transportation expenses per unit,

For the fourth quarter of 2018, the Corporation earned net income and comprehensive income of $82.5 million impacted by an
unrealized gain on risk management contracts of $53.9 million. This compares to net income and comprehensive income of $37 1
million for the quarter ended December 31, 2017, Income before taxes, unrealized gains (losses) on risk management contracts
and acquisition costs was $32.0 million for the quarter ended December 31, 2018, compared to $9.2 million for the quarter ended
December 31, 2017, Stronger commodity prices due to market diversification primarily resulted in the increase.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Corporation generated net income and comprehensive income of $7.1 million
compared to net income and comprehensive income of $122.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2017, Income before
taxes, unrealized gains (losses) on risk management contracts and acquisition costs was $58.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018, compared to $26.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017, Market diversification strategies resulting
in higher realized prices contributed to this improvement,

AVERAGE DAILY PRODUCTION

Three months ended December 31, Years ended December 31,

2018 % of total 2017 % of total 2018 % of total 2017 % of total

Matural Gas (Mcfd) 289,820 92 287,811 a1 316,507 91 235 76T g2
NGLs (bbis/d) 4,150 B 4,575 g 5,128 8 3,587 8
Total (Mefesd) 34,718 100 315,264 100 347,274 100 257 292 100
Total (boefd) 52,453 100 92,544 100 57,879 100 42 882 100

Crverall production volumes for the three months ended December 31, 2018 remained fairly consistent compared to the three
months ended December 31, 2017. Temporary shut-ins of approximately 5,300 boel/d were experienced in the fourth guarter of
2018, with the majority due to third party interruptions and voluntary shut-ins due to price weakness created by these third party
restrictions and outages. NGL production for the fourth quarter was affected by approximately 9% compared to the fourth quarter
of 2017 due to issues at the Townsend facility. The Corporation is working with the facility operator to ensure the issues are
resolved.

Production volumes for the year ended December 31, 2018 increased 35%, compared to the year ended December 31, 2017.
The praduction volume increase was driven by production additions from successful new drills in the Blair Creek, Townsend and
Daiber areas, and the acquisition of UGR Blair Creek Ltd. in 2017 (the "UGR Acquisition”). Liquids production increased 43%
for the year ended December 31, 2018 when compared to the year ended December 31, 2017 due to the emphasis on more
liquids rich drilling locations.
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PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS REVENUE

Three months ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

(2000s) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Matural Gas 104,014 43,883 293,145 183,030
Matural Gas Liquids 21,655 23,815 111,227 66,156
Total 125,669 67,798 404,372 249 186

Faor the three months ended December 31, 2018, petroleum and natural gas revenue increased by 85% compared to the fourth
quarter of 2017. The change in quarterly revenue is driven by a 135% increase in realized natural gas prices, caused by strong
Dawn and Sumas pricing. Similarly, during the year ended December 31, 2018, petroleum and natural gas revenue increased
by 62% as a result of a 35% increase in average production volumes and 20% increase in realized prices.

Commadity Prices

Three months ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

Average Benchmark Prices: 2018 2017 2018 2017

Matural Gas NYMEX (US$/mmbtu) 364 2493 3.09 31

AECO, daily (5A) ($/Mcf) 1.56 1.69 1.50 216

Sumas (USHmmblu) 11.06 272 4.30 278

Dawn ($/Mcf) 5.01 372 4.05 3.95

Crude Oil WTI (US$/bbl) 58.92 55.40 64.79 50.96

Exchange rate (US3/Cdn§) 0.76 0.79 0.77 0.77
Realized Commeodity Prices Before Financial Risk Management Contracts:

Matural Gas ($Mcf) 3.90 1.668 2.54 213

NGLs ($Dbl) 56.72 56.81 59.43 50.53

Total ($/Mcfs) 4.34 2,34 319 265

The Corporation addresses volatility in commaodity prices through an active rsk management strategy which uses fixed price and
location differentials to effectively reduce the Corporation's exposure to the volatile pricing experienced at the AECO and Station
2 sales hubs. This strategy is further supported with physical transportation capacity to other sales hubs.

During the three months ended December 31, 2018, the Corporation's realized natural gas price of $2.90/Mcf represented a
150% premium to the AECO daily (54) benchmark price. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Corporation realized
a natural gas price of 32.54/Mcf, a 69% premium to the AECO daily (54) benchmark price.

The Corporation's long term market diversification strategy consists of entering into financial and physical commitments, including
contracting for transportation outside of the British Columbia market. For 2019, Painted Pony's revenue exposure to Westcoast
Station 2 pricing is expected to average below 2% of revenue, after the impact of financial commedity risk management contracts.

Financial Risk Management

The Corporation uses financial derivatives and physical delivery sales contracts to mitigate some of the exposure to commaodity
price risk, and provide a level of stability to operating cash flows, which assists the Corporation in funding its capital development
pregram. The use of these transactions is governed by and is subject to risk management policies established by the board of
directors of the Corporation (the "Board”). These instrurments are not used for trading or speculative purposes. The Corporation
has not designated its financial derivative contracts as effective accounting hedges, even though the Corporation considers all
commedity contracts to be effective economic hedges. As a result, all such commaodity contracts are recorded at fair value on the
statement of financial position, with changes in the fair value being recognized as an unrealized gain or loss in the statement of
operations.
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Realized Gain On Risk Management Contracts

Three Months Ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017

Realized gain on risk management contracts ($000s) 474 24 156 38,650 44 002
Per unit {($Mcfe) 0.02 0.83 0.30 0.47

The Corporation's method of determining the fair values of derivative financial instruments is disclosed in note 17 to the Annual
Financial Statements. At December 31, 2018, the Corporation held commaodity risk management contracts summarized as follows:

Financial AECO Matural Gas Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (GJrd) (CDN$/GJ)
AECO Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2018 10,000 232
AECO Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 10,000 1.98
AECO Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2019 8,000 266
AECO Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2019 10,000 262
AECO Call Option Sold January 2019 - December 2019 10,000 2.80
AECO Call Option Sold January 2019 - December 2019 15,000 2893
Financial Westcoast Station 2 Natural Gas Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (GJid) (CDN$/GJ)
Westcoast Station 2 Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2019 12,000 235
Westcoast Station 2 Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - September 2019 10,000 2.30
Westcoast Station 2 Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - September 2019 5,000 2.34
Westcoast Station 2 Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 10,000 245
Financial NYMEX Natural Gas Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (Mmbtu/d) (US$/Mmbtu)
USD Mymex Fixed Price January 2019 - March 2019 5,000 4.39
USD Mymex Fixed Price January 2019 - December 2019 5,000 322
USD MNymex Fixed Price April 2019 - October 2018 5,000 2,85
Financial Dawn Natural Gas Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (GJid) (CDN$/GJ)
Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2018 10,000 3.47
Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 10,000 3.50
Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2019 5,000 314
Financial Dawn Natural Gas Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (MMEBtu/d) (USS/MMBtu)
USD Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 5,000 3.29
S0 Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2018 2,000 4.40
USD Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 10,000 253
USD Dawn Fixed Price Swap April 2019 - December 2019 5,000 252
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Financial Sumas Natural Gas Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (MMBtu/d) (USS/MMBtu)
USD Sumas Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 10,000 317
S0 Sumas Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 5,000 5.00
Financial AECO Station 2 Differential Contracts

Price

Volume (AECO TA basis
Options traded Term (GJid) CDNS$/GJ)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap January 2019 - December 201% 10,000 (0.25)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap January 2019 - October 2020 10,000 (0.32)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap January 2019 - October 2020 20,000 (0.32)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap January 2019 - August 2021 20,000 (0.29)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap April 2019 - October 2019 10,000 (0.24)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap Movember 2019 - October 2020 10,000 (0.33)
Financial NYMEX Basis Differential Contracts

Price

Volume  (NYMEX basis
Options traded Term (MMBtu/d) US$/MMBtu)
MY MEX-Sumas Basis Swap January 2019 - December 201% 2,000 (0.60)
NYMEX-AECO Basis Swap April 2019 - October 2019 10,000 (1.45)
NYMEX-AECO Basis Swap April 2019 - September 2021 10,000 (1.14)
NYMEX-AECO Basis Swap April 2020 - October 2020 10,000 (1.45)
NYMEX-AECO Basis Swap Crctober 2021 - March 2023 5,000 (1.08)
MNYMEX-AECO Basis Swap October 2021 - March 2023 5,000 (1.05)
NYMEX-Dawn Basis Swap January 2019 - March 2019 5,000 0.26
NYMEX-Dawn Basis Swap April 2018 - December 2015 10,000 (0.20)
NYMEX-Dawn Basis Swap January 2020 - December 2020 5,000 (0.08)
NYMEX-Dawn Basis Swap January 2020 - December 2020 5,000 (0.07)
Financial WTI Crude Oil Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (Bblid) (CDNS$/BbI)
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2018 200 80.30
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 500 70.20
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 500 70.20
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 250 72,30
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 250 74,00
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 230 74.80
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 500 77.00
WTI Fixed Price Swap July 2019 - December 2018 200 80.75
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2020 - December 2020 500 ¥5.80
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Financial Propane Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (GALMd) (USS/IGAL)
Conway Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 10,500 0.85
Conway Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 10,500 0.67

In addition to the commodity risk management contracts discussed above, the Corporation has entered into physical delivery
sales contracts to manage commodity risk.

The Corporation has the following foreign exchange risk management contracts in place as at December 31, 2018:

Financial Foreign Exchange Contracts

MNotional Amount

Reference Currency Term (USD 000s/month) Strike Rate
UshD January 2019 - March 2019 2000 1.35
uspD January 2019 - December 2019 1,000 1.33

The Corporation periodically enters into USD cross currency basis swap transactions related to London InterBank Offered Rate
("LIBOR") borrowings, which results in a reduction to interest expense paid on borrowings on the credit facility. As at December 31,
2018 the following cross currency basis swap was outstanding:

Contract Quantity Type of Contract Term / Expiry Contract Price

$147 Million Cross currency basis swap January 28, 2019 51.335 CAD/JSD
ROYALTIES

Three Months Ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017

Royalty expense (§000s) 1,639 908 6,345 4,901

Per unit (§Mcfe) 0.06 0.03 0.05 0.05

Raoyalties as a % of Revenue 1.3 1.3 1.6 20

Forthe year ended December 31, 2018, the lower royalty rate of 1.6% compared to 2.0% for the year ended December 31, 2017
can be attributed to lower Crown royalty gas reference prices. The majority of the Corporation’s properties are on the west side
of the British Columbia royalty line and are eligible to receive an average royalty credit of approximately $2.2 million per well. The
remainder of the Corporation's properties, on the east side of the British Columbia royalty line, are eligible to receive an average
royalty credit of approximately $0.8 million per well.

For 2019, the Corporation anticipates overall royalty rates to be approximately 2.0% - 2.5% of total revenue. This estimate
considers the combined impact of incremental sales volumes from newly drilled wells that will qualify for royalty holidays, net of
royalties paid on wells that have obtained the full benefit of provincial royalty incentives.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Three Months Ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017

Operating expenses (§000s) 17,521 18,095 72,830 59,834
Per unit {$Mcfe) 0.61 0.62 0.57 0.64

Per unit operating expenses were reduced by 2% in the fourth quarter of 2018 compared to the fourth quarter of 2017 and by
11% in the year ended December 31, 2018 compared to the year ended December 31, 2017. The reduction in annual per unit
operating expenses is attributable to reduced processing rates, equalization payments and increased production volumes,

For 2019, the Corporation anticipates that average per unit operating expenses will be between $0.60/Mcfe and $0.65/Mcfe,
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TRANSPORTATION EXPENSES

Three Months Ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017

Transportation expenses (§000s) 23,468 13,646 89,876 39,197
Per unit {§Mcfe) 0.81 0.47 0.7 0.42

Perunittransportation expenses forthe three months and yearended December 31, 2018increased by 72% and 69%, respectively,
compared to the three months and year ended December 31, 2017. The increased transportation expenses per unit are the result
of an increase in transport tolls on third party pipelines, as well as higher liquids pipeline costs, due to a 43% increase in liquids
praduction for the year ended December 31, 2018 over the same period in 2017,

The Corporation signed various firm transportation agreements which faciltated its diversification into the Dawn, Sumas, and
AECO markets. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Corporation delivered an average of 65 MMcfid of natural gas
to the Dawn market via Long Term Fixed Price service contracts. The increase in transportation expenses was anticipated given
the Corporation's focus on market diversification. The Corporation has realized incremental revenues, net of applicable
transportation, in excess of $85 million to the end of the fourth quarter, as a result of this strategy. In November 2018, the
Corporation will add an additional 15MMef/d of sales into the Dawn market via the Long Term Fixed Price transport contracts for
a total of BBMMcfid.

For 2019, the Corporation expects average per unit transportation expenses to be between $0.70/Mcfe and $0.75/Mcfe

OPERATING AND CORPORATE NETBACKS

Three Months Ended Years ended
December 31, December 31,
(§/Mcfe) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Realized commodity price 4.34 2.34 3.19 265
Realized gain on risk management contracts 0.02 0.83 0.30 0.47
Royalties (0.06) (0.03) (0.05) (0.05)
Operating expenses (0.61) (0.62) (0.57) (0.64)
Transportation expenses (0.81) (0.47) (0.71) (0.42)
Operating netbacks 2.88 203 2.16 2.0
Finance lease expense (0.49) (0.48) (0.45) (0.47)
Corporate netbacks 2.39 1.58 1.71 1.54

For the three months and year ended December 31, 2018, per unit operating netbacks increased by 40% and 7%, respectively.
For the three months and year ended December 31, 2018, per unit corporate netbacks increased by 50% and 11%, respectively.
Theincrease in operating and corporate netbacks was the result of higher realized commeodity prices (including financial contracts),
partially offset by increased transportation expenses, both due to the Corporation's market diversification efforts.

The Corporation’s operating netback for the three months and year ended December 31, 2018 was 66% and 68% of revenue,
respectively, compared to 88% and 76% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017, respectively. The Corporation's
corporate netback for the three months and year ended December 31, 2018 was 55% and 54% of revenue, respectively, compared
to 68% and 58% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017, respectively.
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Three Months Ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

($000s) 2018 2017 2018 2017
(Gross expenses 6,957 7,749 25,825 26,134
Capitalized (644) (1,703) (6,399) (5,764)
Capital recoveries (334) (857) (1,735) (3,339)
Operating recoveries (194) (198) (733) (549)
MNet expenses 5,785 4993 16,958 16,482
Per unit {(§Mcfe) 0.20 0.17 0.13 0.18

Met general and administrative ("G&A") expenses per unit for the three months ended December 31, 2018 increased by 18%,
compared to the three months ended December 31, 2017 due to lower capitalized expenses and capital recoveries. Met G&A,
expenses per unit for the year ended December 31, 2018 decreased by 28%, compared to the year ended December 31, 2017
due to increased production volumes and staff composition.

The Corporation's policy of allocating and capitalizing costs associated with new capital projects remained unchanged for the
pericd ended December 31, 2018, G&A capitalized and operating recoveries are in accordance with industry practice.

The Corporation anticipates that per unit G&A expenses will average in the range of $0.11/Mcfe to $0.13/Mcfe for 2019,

FINANCE EXPENSE
Three Months Ended Years ended
December 31, December 31,
($000s) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Finance lease expense 14,119 13.247 56,927 44 157
Interest expense 6,241 5,837 25427 15,640
Accretion 1,000 877y 3,849 1,794
Total 21,380 19,961 86,203 £1,501
Per unit {§Mcfa) 0.74 0.569 0.68 0.66

Finance lease expense increased due to interest charges in respect of the Townsend Phase 2 expansion, which commenced
commercial operation in the fourth quarter of 2017, Interest expense increased due to the issuance of senior notes and convertible
debentures in August 2017,

Finance lease expense is a component of the capital fee paid on facilities treated as a finance lease, and is based on the committed
share of production velumes processed through a facility. The capital fee includes finance lease expense and any amortization
of the outstanding finance lease obligation.

Interest expense includes interest on bank debt and standby charges on the Corporation’s syndicated credit facilities, as well as
interest on the senior notes and convertible debentures.

Accretion expense consists of accretion on the decommissioning obligation, senior notes and convertible debentures. Overall
accretion expense increased due to the addition of the senior notes and convertible debentures in the third quarter of 2017, In
addition, accretion on the decommissioning obligation increased as a result of a2 higher decommissioning liability balance, At
December 31, 2018, the risk-free interest rate was 2. 2% compared to 2.3% at December 31, 2017. The Corporation has estimated
the net present value of the decommissioning obligations based on an undiscounted total future liability of $116.3 million at
December 31, 2018, compared to $106.0 million at December 31, 2017,
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ADJUSTED FUNDS FLOW FROM OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

($000s) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Petroleum and natural gas revenue 125,669 67,798 404,372 249 186
Royalties (1.639) (908) (6,345) (4,901)
Realized gain on risk management contracts 474 24,156 38,650 44,002
Operating expenses (17,521) (18,095) (72,830) (59,834)
Transportation expenses (23,468) (13.645) (89,878) (39,187)
General and administrative expenses (5,785) (4,993) (16,958) (16,482)
Acquisition costs —_ —_ — (5,497
Share unit (expense) recovery 1,333 399 (20} 1,724
Finance lease expense (14,119) (13,247) (56,927) (44, 157)
Interest expense (6,241) (5,837) (25,42T7) (15,640)
Adjusted funds flow from operations 58,703 35,629 174,639 109,204
Per unit ($/Mcfe) 2.03 1.23 1.38 1.16

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION AND SHARE UNIT EXPENSE (RECOVERY)

Three months ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

($000s) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Share-based compensation 797 619 2,757 2,205
Share unit expense (recovery) (1,333) (399) 20 (1,724)
Total (536) 220 2777 481

Mo stock options were granted during the three months ended December 31, 2018, pursuant to the Corporation’'s stock option
plan (the “Stock Option Plan®). There were 2,042 200 stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2018 pursuant
to the Stock Option Plan, at a weighted average exercise price of $2.65.

Share-based Compensation

Gross share-based compensation expense is a non-cash estimate of the cost of granting stock options to purchase shares,
calculated using the Black-Scholes model. The expense does not represent actual cash compensation realized by the recipients
of the stock options upon the exercise of these stock options. A portion of share-based compensation costs are capitalized on
the same basis as general and administrative costs.

Share Unit Plans

The Corporation has a deferred share unit ("D3SU") plan, whereby DSUs are issued to members of the Board and eligible executive
officers. Each DSU is a notional unit equal in value to one Common Share, which entitles the holder to a cash payment upon
redemption. DSUs vest at the end of the financial quarter in which they are granted, but can only be converted to cash upon the
holder ceasing to be a director and/for executive officer ofthe Corporation. The expense associated with the DSU plan is determined
based on the 20-day volume weighted average price ("VWAP™) of Commeon Shares at the grant date. The expense is recognized
in the statement of operations in the quarter in which the units are granted, with a corresponding DSU liability recorded as a
current liability in the staterment of financial position. At period end dates, the DSU liability is adjusted based on the 20-day volume
VIWAP of Common Shares. As at December 31, 2018, there were 949 476 units cutstanding under the plan.

The Corporation has a restricted share unit (*"RSU") plan, whereby RSUs are issued to eligible employees and executive officers.
Each RSU is a notichal unit equal in value to one Commaon Share, which entitles the holder to a cash payment upon redemption.
R5Us vest in three equal installments on the first, second, and third anniversaries of the grant date, at which time the holder is
eligible to receive a cash payment equal to the number of vested awards multiplied by the fair market value. The expense
associated with the RSU plan is determined based on the 20-day VWAP of Common Shares at the grant date. The expense is
recognized in the statement of operations over the vesting period, with a corresponding RSU liability recorded as a current liability
in the statement of financial position. At period end dates, the RSU liability is adjusted based on the 20-day VWAP of Common
Shares. As at December 31, 2018, there were 486 500 R5Us outstanding under the plan.

The Corporation has a performance share unit (*PSU") plan, whereby PSUs are issued to eligible executive officers. Each PSU
is a noticnal unit equal in value to one Comman Share, which entitles the holder to a cash payment upon redemption. PSUs vest
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upon the third anniversary of the grant date, at which time the holder is eligible to receive a cash payment equal to the number
of vested awards multiplied by the fair market value, The unit value is adjusted for a performance multiplier which can range from
0 to 2 and is dependent on the performance of the Corporation for a predefined period. The expense associated with the PSLU
plan is determined based on the 20-day VWAP of Common Shares at the grant date. The expense is recognized in the statement
of operations over the vesting period, with a corresponding PSU liability recorded as a current liability in the statement of financial
position, At period end dates, the PSU liability is adjusted based on the 20-day VWAP of Commeon Shares. As at December 31,
2018, there were 658 900 PSUs outstanding under the plan

DEPLETION AND DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

Three Months Ended Years ended

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017 2018 2017

Depletion and depreciation ($000s) 23,204 24 921 107,513 83,887
Per unit {§Mcfe) 0.80 0.88 0.85 0.89

Depletion and depreciation expense per unit for the three months ended December 31, 2018 decreased by 7%, compared to the
three months ended December 31, 2017. Depletion and depreciation expense per unit for the year ended December 31, 2018
decreased by 4%, compared fo the year ended December 31, 2017. The depletion calculation for the three months ended
December 31, 2018 included future development costs associated with the development of the Corporation's proved plus probable
reserves of $3.5 billion, compared to $4.1 billion as at December 31, 2017,

The Corporation's exploration and evaluation ("E&E") assets totaled $130.3 million as at December 31, 2018, compared to $159.0
million as at December 31, 2017, and were not subject to depletion. Substantially all of the E&E assets relate to undeveloped
land. At December 31, 2018, management expensed $1.7 million (December 31, 2017 - nil) relating to land that is expiring in
2018,

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Three Months Ended Years ended
December 31, December 31,
($000s) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Drilling and completions 17,148 45,144 127,636 240 640
Facilities and equipment 765 14,954 17,935 45 613
Lease acquisitions and retention 144 294 692 1,095
Seismic 61 2687 102 4,143
Property dispositions —_ = —_ 19
Capitalized G&A 716 1,703 6,923 5764
Exploration and development 18,834 62,362 153,288 301,274
Head office expenditures ez 103 1,072 1,340
Capital expenditures - cash 19,196 62,455 154,360 302,614
Capital lease assets —_ 130,000 —_ 130,000
Share-based compensation 13 286 a78 913
Decommissioning costs 4,780 5,322 5,623 14,973
UGR acquisition — — — 207,491
Total 23,989 188,373 160,961 655,991

During the three months and year ended December 31, 2018, the Corporation drilled 1 (1.0 net) and 22 (22 .0 net) Montney natural
gas wells, respectively, and completed 5 (5.0 net) and 28 (28.0 net) Montney natural gas wells, respectively.

Capital expenditures for the three months and year ended December 31, 2018 included $17.1 million and $127.6 million,
respectively, on drilling and completions activity. Facilities and equipment capital consists of equipping costs, pipeline construction
costs and spending on processing facilities. Mon-cash decommissioning costs are impacted by drilling activity and changes in
risk-free interest rates. In 2017, subsequent to the date of the UGR Acqguisition, the decommissioning obligation was revalued
resulting in a $7.1 million adjustment, with a corresponding increase to property, plant and equipment.

The planned capital program for 2019 of $95 to $110 million is currently anticipated to include 19 (19.0 net) Montney horizontal
natural gas wells drilled and 18 (18.0 net) completed.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Corporation's
approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, to the extent possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses ornsking damage to the Corporation's
reputation.

Management closely monitors cash flow requirements to ensure that it has sufficient borrowing capacity to meet operational and
financial obligations currently and in the foreseeable future; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that
cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. To achieve this objective, the Corporation prepares annual capital
expenditure budgets, which are regularly monitored and updated as considered necessary. Further, the Corporation utilizes
autherity for expenditures on both operated and non-operated projects to further manage capital expenditures. The Corporation
also typically collects its petroleum and natural gas revenues from most properties on the 25th of each month

To facilitate the capital expenditure program, the Corporation has an aggregate of $400 million in syndicated credit facilities at
December 31, 2018 compared to $450 million at December 31, 2017, which are reviewed semi-annually by its lenders, As at
December 31, 2018, the Corporation had net debt of $348.5 million, which included working capital of 32,9 million. Management
anticipates that the Corporation will continue to have adequate liquidity to fund working capital requirements and capital
expenditures through a combination of cash flows, available credit facilities, senior notes and convertible debentures, As a result
ofthe current commeodity pricing environment, uncertainty exists in the commedity, credit and capital markets, which the Corporation
continues to monitor in conjunction with its financing alternatives.

The Corporation’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. The Corporation manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying petroleurmn and natural gas assets. The
Corporation considers its capital structure to include shareholders' equity, loans and borrowings and working capital. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Corporation may issue shares or debt, dispose of assets, and adjust its capital spending
to manage current and projected debt levels,

The Corporation monitors capital based on the total debt to cash flow ratio, on a trailing four fiscal quarter basis. This ratio is
calculated as total debt, defined as outstanding loans and borrowings plus or minus working capital, excluding fair value of risk
management contracts, divided by cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working capital and decommissioning
expenditures for the most recent four calendar quarters. In orderto facilitate the management of this ratio, the Corporation prepares
annual capital expenditure budgets, which are updated as necessary depending on varying factors including current and forecast
prices, successful capital deployment and general industry conditions. The annual and updated budgets are approved by the
Board.

As a result of shifting from an exploration-focused program to a development-focused program, the Corporation has adapted its
approach to capital management to include low cost bank debt and introduced fixed term debt to ensure financial liquidity, as part
of the capital structure going forward. The Corporation is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, The syndicated
credtt facilities are subject to a periodic review of the borrowing base which is directly impacted by the value of the petroleum and
natural gas reserves.

SENIOR NOTES

Cn August 23, 2017, the Corporation issued $150.0 million of 8.5% senior unsecured notes (the “Motes”) with a five year term
by way of a private placement. Interest is payable in equal quarterly installments in arrears. The Motes are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest, on a senior unsecured basis, by the Corporation. There are no maintenance
financial covenants.

The Motes are non-callable by the Corporation prior to the three-year anniversary, If the Corporation chooses to redeem the Notes
prior to August 23, 2020, they will be subject to a make-whole premium equal to the Canada Yield Price, plus accrued and unpaid
interest. At any time an or after August 23, 2020, the Corporation can redeem all or part of the Notes at the redemption prices
set forth in the table below plus any accrued and unpaid interest.

Redemption Schedule Percentage
August 23, 2020 - August 22, 2021 104.250%
August 23, 2021 - February 22, 2022 102.125%
February 23, 2022 - August 23, 2022 100.000%

If a change of control event occurs at any time before maturity, the Corporation must offer to repurchase the Notes at a price
according to the redemption schedule above.
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CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

Cn August 23, 2017, the Corporation issued $50.0 million of convertible unsecured subordinated debentures (the “Debentures”).
The Debentures mature on August 23, 2021 and bear interest at 6.5% per annum payable quarterly. At the holder's option, the
Debentures may be converted into Commeon Shares at any time priorto the close of business on the date of maturity at a conversion
price of 85.60 per share (the "conversion price”).

The Debentures are non-redeemable by the Corporation before February 22, 2020 other than pursuant to the 90% redemption
right (see change of control event below). The Debentures are redeemable by the Corporation between February 23, 2020 and
August 23, 2021 at a redemption price equal to principal amount plus interest. Redemption may be satisfied in Commen Shares
if the 30-day VWAP on the notice date and the closing price immediately prior to the notice date are both greater than 140% of
the conversion price.

O maturity, the Corporation may satisfy its obligation to holders of Debentures by issuing Common Shares if the Corporation's
market capitalization exceeds $750 million. The number of Commeon Shares issuable is calculated based on 95% of the lesser
of the 30-day VWARP and the two-day VWAR on the date of maturity.

pon the occurrence of a change of control event, the Corporation must offer to repurchase the Debentures at a price according
to the schedule below. If holders of 80% or more of the principal amount of Debentures ocutstanding accept the offer, the Corporation
shall have the right to repurchase 100% of the Debentures outstanding.

Redemption Schedule Percentage of Principal
January 1, 2019 - February 22, 2020 105.000%
February 23, 2020 - August 23, 2021 100.000%

BANK DEBT

As at December 31, 2018 the Corporation's syndicate provided credit facilities of $400 million. The facilities are provided by a
syndicate of financial institutions, and include a $350 million extendable revolving facility and a $50 million operating facility. The
facilities revolve for a two-year period, which is extendable annually, subject to syndicate approval. The facilities are subject to
semi-annual review and re-determination of the borrowing base by April 30 and October 31 of each year, or in the circumstance
of a material adverse change. Any re-determination of the borrowing base is effective immediately, and if the borrowing base is
reduced, the Corporation has 60 days to repay any shortfall.

The credit facilities bear interest on a matrix system that ranges from the bank’s prime rate plus 1.0% to the bank's prime rate
plus 2.25% per annum depending on the Corporation's senior debt to quarterly annualized EBITDA ratio as defined by the lenders,
ranging from less than 1.00:1 to 3.00:1. The credit facilities provide that advances may be made by way of prime rate loans, U.S.
Base Rate loans, LIBOR leans, bankers' acceptances, letters of credit or letters of guarantee. A standby fee of 0.5% to 0.8125%
per annum is charged on the undrawn portion of the credit facilities, also calculated depending on the Corporation's senior debt
to quarterly annualized EBITDA ratio, as defined by the lenders, which was 0.80:1.00 at December 31, 2018,

As at December 31, 2018, Painted Pony had USD $108.5 million (CAD $147 million) cutstanding in a LIBOR loan, as well as $20
million in bankers' acceptances outstanding with an effective interest rate of 4.2% per annum. In addition, as at December 31,
2018 and December 31, 2017, the Corporation had cutstanding letters of credit totaling $21.5 million and USD $15.0 million (CAD
$20.5 million), which reduce the credit available on the syndicated facilities. Unrealized foreign exchange loss on translation of
the USD LIBOR loan was $1.1 million at December 31, 2018, which subsequently reversed in January 2019.

Security over all of the Corporation’s assets is provided by a floating charge demand debenture in the aggregate amount of $1.0
billion, The Corporation has provided a negative pledge and an undertaking to provide fixed charges over its petroleum and
natural gas reserves in certain circumstances. The syndicated facilities are not subject to financial covenants,

STRATEGIC ALLIANCE

The Corporation is party to a series of agreements (collectively the “Strategic Alliance”™) with a Canadian midstream company
(the “Midstream Company”), relating to the development of processing infrastructure and marketing services for natural gas and
MGLs.

Under the Strategic Alliance, the Midstream Company committed to building gas processing facilities including a 198 MMcfid
shallow cut gas processing facility at the Townsend property and related pipeline infrastructure, which commenced commercial
operations in 2018 (the *“Townsend Facility™). During 2017, Painted Pony entered into an agreement with the Midstream Company
in respect of a Townsend Phase 2 expansion ("Townsend Phase 2°) which consisted of a 99 MMcf/d gas processing train located
on the existing Townsend site adjacent to, and sharing joint equipment with the original Townsend Facility. Painted Pony did not
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acquire any legal right, title, or interest in the Townsend Facility, Townsend Phase 2 or related pipeline infrastructure, The
Corporationis not responsible for future pipeline or facility restoration liabilities. All construction costs were borne by the Midstream
Company. The Corporation has the right to a minimum of 198 MMcfd of firm capacity, in respect of which there is a take or pay
obligation on production volumes delivered to the facility of 180 MMcfid. The Corporation also has the right to the full 99 MMcf/
d of firm capacity at Townsend Phase 2, in respect of which there is a take or pay obligation on preduction volumes delivered to
the facility of 90 MMcfid, which commenced in the first quarter of 2018,

The Townsend Facility, related pipeline infrastructure and Townsend Phase 2 have been recorded as a finance lease. Painted
Pony has recorded the asset, representing the total construction cost of the Townsend Facility of approximately 3490 million, with
a corresponding obligation on the statement of financial position. Over the course of the 20-year lease, there is a capital fee paid
to the Midstream Company, which includes finance costs and the amortization of the obligation. The associated processing fee
is recorded in operating expenses.

Total expected payments based on annual take or pay volumes, including both the principal and financing components, are
reflected in the table below.

After 1 year
but not more More than
($000s) Within 1 year than five years five years Total
Processing 53,785 285,500 574,624 913,908
Transportation 9,802 53,258 168,281 232,441
Total 63,687 338,758 743,805 1,146,350
Principal 5,680 66,654 417 464 489,798

COMMITMENTS
The following is a summary of the estimated costs required to fulfill Painted Pony's remaining contractual commitments as at
December 31, 2018

($000s) 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Thereafter Total
Transportation and processing 92362 118,236 136,617 135919 114915 1,450,013 2,048,062
Interest on senior notes 12,750 12,750 12,750 9,563 — — 47,813
Interest on convertible debentures 3,250 3,250 2,438 — — — 8,938
Office leases and other 1,582 1,579 1,563 1,347 — — 6,071
Total commitments 108,944 135815 153,368 146829 114,915 1,450,013 2,110,884

Transportation commitments include contracts to transport natural gas and NGLs through third-party owned pipeline systems in
Canada. Processing commitments include contracts to process natural gas and natural gas liquids through third-party owned gas
processing facilities in British Columbia. Interest on senior notes includes guarterly interest on senior notes. Interest on convertible
debentures includes quarterly interest on convertible debentures. Office leases include the Corporation's contractual obligations
for office space.

The Corporation has certain lease arrangements that are reflected in the commitments table above, which were entered into in
the normal course of operations. All leases, other than the Townsend Facility finance lease, have been treated as operating leases
whereby the lease payments are included in operating expenses or general and administrative expenses depending on the nature
of the lease.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
Mo off balance sheet arrangements existed as at December 31, 2018 or December 31, 2017, except those discussed above.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Corporation has an unlimited number of Cormmon Shares and an unlimited number of preferred shares ("Preferred Shares™)
authorized for issuance. As at December 31, 2018 and March G, 2018, there were 160,985 692 Common Shares issued and
outstanding. At December 31, 2018 and March &, 2019, there were no Preferred Shares issued and cutstanding.

Pursuant to the Stock Option Plan, options to purchase Common Shares are granted to executive officers and employees of the
Corporation. Non-employee directors are not eligible for grants of stock options. Stock options are granted at the VWAP of the
Common Shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant, and have a five-year term. Stock options
granted vest as to one-third on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date. As at December 31, 2018, an
aggregate of 8,925 075 stock options were issued and outstanding at a weighted-average price of $5.09 per stock option. As at

2018 | PAINTED PONY ENERGY LTD



20

March 6, 2019, an aggregate of 9,921 975 stock options were issued and outstanding at a weighted-average price of $34.42 per
stock option.

INCOME TAXES

As at December 31, 2018, the Corporation had a $10.9 million deferred tax liability, compared to a $7.8 million liability as at
December 31, 2017. The deferred tax expense was $3.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2018, compared to $45.4
million during the year ended December 31, 2017. Painted Pony's estimated tax pools at December 31, 2018 were $1.4 billion.

DIVIDENDS
The Corporation has not declared or paid any dividends and does not have a current intention to do so.

PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO EXPECTATIONS

Readers are reminded that forward-looking statements in this MD&A are subject to significant risks and uncertainties, many of
which are beyond Painted Pony's control and are based on a number of material factors and assumptions, some or all of which
may prove to be incorrect. See "Advisories - Forward-looking Statements” in the MDE&A for further discussion of forward looking
statements, risks and uncertainties. A comparisen of actual performance to the previously announced expectations of the
Corporation is as follows:

«  For 2018, the Corporation expected to receive a realized natural gas price at a premium to the AECO (5A) benchmark
price. The actual weighted average price received during 2018 represented a 69% premium to the AECO (5A) daily
spot price, influenced by the Corporation's market diversification efforts, and pipeline disruptions

«  Painted Pony's royalty rate for 2018 was expected to be approximately 2.0% - 2.5% of total revenues, The actual royalty
rate for 2018 was 1.6% of total revenues. Royalty rates were lower than expected due to lower Crown royalty gas
reference prices.

«  Qperating expenses for 2018 were expected to be between $0.55Mcfe and $0.60Mcfe. Actual operating expenses for
2018 were $0.57/Mcfe.

«  Transportation expenses for 2018 were expected to be between 30.70Mcfe and 30.75/Mcfe. Actual transportation
expenses for 2018 were $0.71/Mcfe.

«  Met G&A expenses for 2018 were expected to be between 30 10/Mcfe to $0.14/Mcfe. Actual net G&A expenses for
2018 were $0.13/Mcfe.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of IFRS accounting policies, reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and income and expenses. Accordingly, actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Critical Accounting Judgments
The following are critical judgments that management has made in the process of applying accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Cash-Generating Units

The Corporation’s assets are aggregated into cash-generating units ("CGUs") for the purpose of assessing impairment.
CGUs are based on an assessment of the unit's ability to generate independent cash inflows. The determination of
these CGUs was based on management's judgmentin regard to shared infrastructure, geographical proximity, petroleurmn
type and exposure to market risk and materiality. By their nature, these assumptions are subject to management's
judgment and may impact the carrying value of the Corporation’s net assets in future periods.

Impairment Indicators

Judgments are required to assess when impairment indicators exist and impairment testing is required. The Corporation
is required to consider information from both external sources (such as negative downturn in commaodity prices, significant
adverse changes in the technological, market, economic or legal enviranment in which the entity operates) and internal
sources (such as downward revisions in reserves, significant adverse effect on the financial and operational performance
of a CGU, evidence of obsolescence or physical damage to the asset). In determining the recoverable amount of assets,
in the absence of quoted market prices, impairment tests are based on estimates of reserves, production rates, future
petroleum and natural gas prices, future costs, discount rates, market value of land and other relevant assumptions.

The application of the Corporation's accounting policy for E&E assets requires management to make certain judgments
as to future events and circumstances as to whether economic quantities of reserves have been found.

Deferred Taxes

In determining its deferred tax provisions, the Corporation must apply judgment when interpreting and applying tax laws
and regulations. The determination of the appropriate rules may be uncertain for many periods. The final outcome could
result in amounts different fromthose inially recorded and could impact tax expense in the periods where a determination
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is made, Judgments are also made by management to determine the likelihood of whether deferred tax assets at the
end of the reporting period will be realized from future taxable income.

Critical Accounting Estimates
The following are key estimates made by management affecting the measurement of balances and transactions in these financial
statements.

Impact of Reserves

Estimation of recoverable quantities of proved and probable reserves includes estimates regarding future commodity
prices, exchange rates, discount rates and production and transportation expenses for future cash flows as well as the
interpretation of complex geological and geophysical models and data. Changes in expected future cash flows in reported
reserves can affect the impairment of assets, the decommissioning obligation, the economic feasibility of E&E assets
and the amounts reported for depletion and depreciation of property, plant and equipment ("PP&E"), and the recognition
of deferred tax assets. These reserve estimates are prepared in accordance with the Canadian Qil and Gas Evaluation
Handbook and are verified by independent gualified reserve evaluators, who work with information provided by the
Corporation to establish reserve determinations in accordance with National Instrument 51-101 - Sfandards of Disclosure
for Oif and Gas Activities ("NI 51-1017).

In a business combination, management makes estimates of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
which includes assessing the value of petroleum and natural gas properties based upon the estimation of recoverable
quantities of proved and probable reserves being acquired.

Share-Based Compensation

All equity-settled, share-based awards issued by the Corporation are fair valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model, In assessing the fair value of equity-based compensation, estimates have to be made regarding the expected
volatility in share price, option life, dividend yield, risk-free rate and estimated forfeitures at the initial grant date.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Painted Pony records risk management contracts at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the statements
of operations. The Corporation's estimate of the fair value is determined using observable market data and external
counterparty information, including estimated forward prices and volatility in those prices.

Decommissioning Obligation

The Corporation estimates future remediation costs of production facilities, wells and pipelines at different stages of
development and construction of assets or facilities. In most instances, removal of assets oceurs many years into the
future. This requires estimates regarding abandonment date, future environmental and regulatory legislation, the extent
of reclamation activities, the engineering methodelogy for estimating cost, future removal technologies in determining
the removal cost and hability-specific discount rates to determine the present value of these cash flows.

Deferred Taxes

Tax provisions are based on enacted or substantively enacted laws. Changes in those laws could affect amounts
recognized in the statement of operations both in the peried of change, which would include any impact on cumulative
provisions, and in future periods.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent it is considered probable that those assets will be recoverable.
This involves an assessment of when those deferred tax assets are likely to reverse and a judgment as to whether or
not there will be sufficient taxable income available to offset the tax assets when they do reverse. This requires
assumptions regarding future profitability and is therefore inherently uncertain. Estimates of future taxable income are
based on forecasted cash flows from operations.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

MNew accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018 and have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.
The standards applicable to the Corporation are as follows:

Financial Instruments

Effective January 1, 2018, the Corporation adopted IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and applied the standard on a retrospective
basis. IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to
buy ar sell nen-financial items. This standard replaces 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
application of IFRS 9 has not resulted in any differences between the previous carrying amounts and the cammying amaounts at the
date of initial application of IFRS 9.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Effective January 1, 2018, the Corporation adopted IFRS 15 *Revenue from Contracts with Custormers”, and applied the standard
on a modified retrospective basis. IFRS 15 provides guidance on the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
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cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Corporation has reviewed all revenue contracts with customers, and has
determined that there is no material impact on the financial statements with respect to the application of IFRS 15. IFRS 15
replaces |AS 18 and 1AS 11.

The Corporation principally generates revenue from the sale of natural gas and NGLs, and revenue associated with the sale of
natural gas and NGLs is recognized when control is transferred from the Corporation to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with the customer. Payment terms for the Corporation's
natural gas and NGL contracts are within one month fellowing delivery. The Corporation does not have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods to the customer and payment by the customer exceed one year. As a result,
the Corporation does not adjust its revenue transactions for the time value of money

Management has applied the following expedients as part of the adoption of the standard:

+  contracts that started and were completed in the comparative period were not restated - no changes were made to the
revenue recognized under the previous standard for contracts for which the entity transferred all of the goods or services
identified during the comparative period;

«  exemption from applying variable consideration requirements - the transaction price at the end of completion of the
contract has been used, rather than estimating variable consideration in each comparative reporting period; and

+  disclosure exemption - for reporting periods before the date of initial application, no disclosure was included about the
amount of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations and when these were expected to be
recognized in revenue,

FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONQUNCEMENTS

Leases

InJanuary 2016, the 1A issued IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 16"), which replaces 1AS 17 "Leases”, and provides that a single recognition
and measurement model for leases would apply, with required recognition of assets and liabilities for most leases. For lessees,
IFRS 16 removes the classification of leases as either operating or finance leases, effectively treating all leases as finance leases.
Certain short-term leases (less than 12 months) and leases of low value assets are exempt from the requirements, and may
continue to be treated as operating leases.

The Corporation adopted IFRS 16 effective January 1, 2019, and is in the process of finalizing its analysis with respect to the
determination of leases. The Corporation is analyzing whether the existing finance lease obligation totaling $490 million as at
December 31, 2018 meets the definition of a lease. In the event that the finance lease obligation is determined not to be a lease,
the balance will be removed from the statement of financial position with a reduction to property, plant and equipment and an
adjustment to retained earnings. Further, the removal of the finance lease obligation would result in a reduction to finance and
depletion expense and an increase in operating costs in the statement of operations. The Corporation has determined that office
leases for both the corporate and field locations will be added to the Statement of Financial Position effective January 1, 2019,
The Corporation has elected to apply the optional exemptions for short-term and low-value leases.

BUSINESS RISKS

Painted Pony's production and exploration and development activities are concentrated in western Canada, where activity is
highly competitive and includes a variety of companies ranging from smaller junior producers to the much larger integrated
producers. Painted Pony is subject to various types of business risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to:

+  volatility of natural gas and crude oil prices,

+  availability of qualified personnel and drilling and completion egquipment;

+«  finding and developing petroleum and natural gas reserves at economic costs;
+«  production of petroleum and natural gas in commercial quantities, and

«  marketability of petroleum and natural gas production.

In order to reduce exploration risk, the Corporation strives to employ highly qualified and motivated professional employees and
consultants with a demonstrated ability to generate quality proprietary geological and geophysical prospects. To help maximize
drilling success, Painted Pony combines exploration in areas that afford multi-zone prospect potential, targeting a range of low
to moderate risk prospects with minimal exposure to select high-risk plays with high-reward opportunities. Painted Pony also
explores in areas where the Corporation's employees have significant expenence.

The Corporation mitigates its nsks related to producing hydrocarbons through the utilization of the most appropriate technology
and information systems. Painted Pony seeks operational control of its projects, where feasible.

Qil and gas exploration, development and production can involve environmental risks such as pollution of the envirenment and

destruction of natural habitat, as well as safety risks such as personal injury. In order to mitigate such nsks, Painted Pony conducts
its operations with high standards and follows safety procedures intended to reduce the potential for personal injury to employees,
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contractors and the public at large. The Corporation maintains insurance coverage to address significant business risks, at market
rates and within defined limits and deductibles.

The amount and terms of this insurance are reviewed on an ongoing basis and adjusted as necessary to reflect changing corporate
requirements, as well as industry standards and government regulations. Painted Pony may periedically use financial or physical
delivery hedges to reduce its exposure against the potential adverse impact of commaodity price volatility, as governed by formal
policies approved by senior management, subject to controls established by the Board.

The Corporation uses financial derivatives and physical delivery sales contracts to mitigate some of the exposure to commodity
price risk, and provide a level of stability to operating cash flows which enables the Corporation to fund its capital development
program,

Additional information about the Corporation's business risks is outlined in the advisories section of this MD&A and is available
in Painted Pony's AlF for the year ended December 31, 2018 that is filed on SEDAR at www sedar.com under the Corporation's
profile.

LEGAL, ENVIRONMENTAL, REMEDIATION AND OTHER CONTINGENT MATTERS

The Corporation reviews legal, environmental, remediation and other contingent matters to determine whether a loss is probable
based on judgment and interpretation of laws and regulations, and to determine whether the loss can reasonably be estimated.
When the loss is determined, it is charged to income. The Corporation's management monitors known and potential contingent
matters and makes appropriate provisions by charges to income when warranted by the circumstances.

The Corporation may from time to time be involved in legal claims or litigation arising in the normal course of business. The
cutcome of legal claims or litigation is uncertain and there can be no assurance that such legal claims or litigation will be resolved
in the Corporation’s favour. Other than disclosed herein, the Corporation does not currently believe that the outcome of adverse
decisions in any pending or threatened legal claims or litigation, or any amount which it may be required to pay, would have a
material adverse impact on its financial position or results of operations.

There is ongoing litigation invelving the Blueberry River First Nation ("BRFN") and the British Columbia government regarding
the obligations of natural resource companies and the Crown relative to adeguacy of consultation and cumulative effects in respect
of upstream cil and gas development in northeast British Columbia, where a substantial portion of the Corporation's land and
assefs are situated. The Corporation is not a party to the litigation, and the ERFN and the Crown are currently in negotiations.
However, if the claim is decided in BRFN's favour, the Corporation may incur increased costs relative to operations in northeast
British Columbia, particularly for those operations that may be considered to impact Aboriginal fraditional lands or rights. The
Corporation is therefore, actively monitoring the status of the BRFN claim.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS & PROCEDURES AND INTERMNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Corporation’'s Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and Chief Financial Officer ("CFQ") have designed, or caused to be designed
under their supervision, disclosure controls and procedures ("DC&P™), as defined in MNational Instrument 52-109 - Certificafion of
Disclosure in Issuer's Annual and Infenm Filings ("N 52-109°) to provide reasonable assurance that: (i) material information
relating to the Corporation is made known to the Corporation's CEOQ and CFO by others, paricularly during the pericd in which
the annual and interim filings are being prepared; and (i) information required to be disclosed by the Corporation in its annual
filings, interim filings or other reports filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time period specified in securities legislation. As at December 31, 2018, the CEQ and CFO evaluated the
design and operation of the Corporation’s DC&F. Based on that evaluation, the CEQ and CFO concluded that the Corporation's
DCE&P was effective as at December 31, 2018,

The Corporation's CEQ and CFO have designed, or caused to be designed under their supervision, internal controls over financial
reporting ("ICFR"), as defined in NI 52-109, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS. The Corporation has established and
maintains ICFR using the criteria that were set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013). As at December 31, 2018, the CEQ and CFO evaluated the design and operating
effectivenass of the Corporation’s ICFR. Based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that the Corporation's ICFR was
effective as at December 31, 2018.

Mo material changes in the Corporation’s ICFR were identified during the pericd beginning on October 1, 2018 and ended on
December 31, 2018 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Corporation's ICFR. It should
be noted that a control system, including the Corporation’s disclosure and internal controls and procedures, no matter how well
conceived, can provide only reasonable, but not absolute assurance that the objectives of the contral system will be met and it
should not be expected that the disclosure and internal controls will prevent all errers or fraud.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION
The following tables set forth selected financial information of the Corporation for the eight most recently completed quarters
ending at the fourth quarter of 2018,

Quarter ended (§000s, except where noted) Dec 31, 2018 Sept 30, 2018 Jun 30, 2018 Mar 31, 2018
Petroleum and natural gas revenue 125,669 90,238 87,858 100,809
Cash flows from operating activities 48 475 33,269 35,734 51,557

Per share - basic 0.30 0.21 022 0.3z
Per share - diluted 0.29 0.20 0.21 0.30
Adjusted funds flow from operations 08,703 30,319 38,056 46 561
Per share - basic 0.36 019 0,24 029
Per share - diluted 0.35 018 023 027
Met income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) 52,473 (13,847) (33,169) (8,394)
Per share - basic 0.39 (0.09) (0.21) (0.05)
Met income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) - diluted 63,071 (13,847) (33,169) (8,394)
Per share - diluted 0.37 (0.09) (0.21) (0.05)
Capital expenditures 18,196 39,433 17,638 78,093

Working capital (deficiency) 32,890 (37,664) (1.142) (5.088)
Bank debt 163,140 172,909 184,271 163,533
Senior notes 143,105 142,715 142,335 141,968
Convertible debentures - liability 46,113 45,792 45,480 45178
Met debt 348,473 385,119 375,313 306,062
Total assets 2,055,354 2,011,154 2010612 2.057 878
Decommissicning obligation 53,565 48,496 50,885 49 613
Average daily production volumes (boefd) 02,453 08,330 60,116 60,703
Average daily production volumes (MMecfe/d) 314.7 350.0 3807 364.2
Realized commedity prices before financial risk

Matural gas ($/Mcf) 3.80 210 1.80 2.38
NGLs ($/bbl) 56.72 58.21 61.75 58.39
Total (3/Mcfe) 4.34 2.80 2687 3.08
Operating netbacks (SMcfe) 2.88 1.72 1.83 218
Corporate nethacks ($/Mcfe) 2.39 1.27 1.51 1.76
Quarter ended (F000s, except where noted) Dec 31, 2017 Sept 30, 2017 Jun 30, 2017 Mar 31, 2017
Petroleum and natural gas revenue &87,798 50,016 66,424 B4 248
Cash flows from operating activities 2747 28,609 18,230 31,661
Per share - basic 017 018 013 032
Fer share - diluted 0.16 0.18 013 0.31
Adjusted funds flow from operations 35,629 28,712 18,149 25,714
Per share - basic 022 018 013 0.26
Per share - diluted 0.21 018 013 0.25
Met income and comprehensive income 37,067 14 552 13,829 56,888
Per share - basic 023 0.09 .10 0.57
Met income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) - diluted ar.enr 14,552 13,829 o6, 888
Fer share - diluted 0.22 0.09 0.10 0.56
Capital expenditures G2, 465 85,582 97,8679 96 678

Warking capital (deficiency) 33,025 (21,486) (30,794} (74,225)
Bank debt 145 228 93,759 235,547 232,649
Senior notes 141,613 141,260 — —
Convertible debentures - iability 44 887 44 5897 — —
Met debt 363,884 336,405 283,538 209,791
Total assets 2,031,643 1,800,283 1,742 761 1,406 214
Decommissioning obligation 46, 811 41,255 44 517 30,431
Average daily production volumes (boeld) 02,544 42 353 40,574 359,878
Average daily production volumes (MMcfe/d) 3153 2541 243.4 215.3
Realized commodity prices before financial risk

Matural gas ($/Mcf) 1.66 1.59 2.64 2.87
NGLs ($/bbl) 56.81 4570 47.04 50.30
Total (3/Mcfe) 2.34 214 3.00 3.35
Operating netbacks ($Mcfe) 2.05 212 1.81 2.08
Corporate netbacks ($/Mcfe) 1.59 1.62 1.37 1.589
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SELECTED ANMNUAL INFORMATION
The following table sets forth selected annual financial information of the Corporation for the three most recently completed years
ending December 31, 2018,

Year ended ($000s, except where noted) Dec 31, 2018 Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2016
Petroleum and natural gas revenue 404 372 2449 186 121,580
Cash flows from operating activities 169,035 106,917 44 658
Per share - basic 1.05 0.76 0.45
Per share - diluted 0.99 074 0.45
Adjusted funds flow from operations 174,639 109,204 52 589
Per share - basic 1.08 0.78 0.53
Per share - diluted 1.03 076 0.53
Met income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) 7,054 122,376 (51,857)
Per share - basic 0.04 0.87 (0.52)
MNet income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) - diluted 7,064 123,226 (51,857)
Per share - diluted 0.04 0.85 (0.52)
Capital expenditures 154,360 302614 204,39
Warking capital (deficiency) 32,890 33,025 (73,647)
Bank debt 163,140 149 228 200,836
Senior notes 143,105 141,613 —
Convertible debentures - liability 46,113 44 BBT —
Met debt 348,473 363,884 228,463
Total assets 2,055,354 2,031,643 1,336,955
Decommissioning obligation 53,565 46 811 28 857
Average daily production volumes (boesd) o7 B79 42 882 23,204
Average daily production volumes (MMcfe/d) 347.3 257.3 139.2

Significant factors and trends that have affected the Corporation’s results during the above annual and quarterly periods include:
= Petroleum and natural gas revenues are impacted by both fluctuating commaedity prices and production velumes. The
Corporation's successful capital program, the UGR Acquisition, and commencement of commercial operations at the
Townsend Facilities have generated incremental production volumes, offset by shut-in production volumes during low
pricing environments and pipeline disruptions. There has been significant velatility and fluctuation in commaodity prices

over the last two years.

*  Royalties vary due to commeodity prices, preduction levels and the status of provincial royalty incentive programs. As
the production base matures, incremental royalties occur on wells as the maximum volumes provided for under provincial
incentive programs are attained.

= Metincome (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) throughout the periods was significantly influenced by unrealized
and realized gains or losses on risk management contracts and costs related to the UGR Acquisition.

*  Fluctuations in capital expenditures have reflected both available capital resources and capital spending restraints during
weaker commodity price cycles,

*  The Corporation's focus is now on development and production, with the Corporation utilizing bank debt, convertible
debentures, senior notes and cash flow to assist with the capital program. As the Corporation proceeds with its prudent
capital program, bank debt amounted to $163.1 million as at December 31, 2018,

= Totalassets and non-current liabilities have generally increased asthe Corporation’s capital program has been executed,
as well as with the UGR Acquisition.

ADVISORIES

Forward-looking Statements

Certain stafements in this MD&A constitufe forward-looking statements and forward-looking informalion (collectively, the forward-
locking statements”) within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities laws. Such forward-ooking stafements relate to fufure
events, including expectafions of fufure production, components of cash fow and nef income, expected future events, including
with respect fo the Corparation’s well program, confractual commitments, capital expendifures, dividend policy and credif facility,
andior financial results that are forward-looking in nature and subject to substantial risks and uncertainties. AN statements ofher
than stafements of hisforical fact contained in this MDEA may be forwardocking sfatements. Such sfatements and infarmation
may be identified by words such as “anficipate”, “will", “infend”, “cowld”, "shouwld”, “may”, "expect”, “forecast”, “plan”, “potential”,
‘project”, “budget”, “estimale”, "assume”, “believe”, “shall”, “continue”, “target”, “forward looking to®, and similar ferms or the
negatives thereof or other comparable terminofogy. The forward-looking statements confained in this MD&A invalve known and
unknown nsks, uncertainties and other factors that are beyond the Corporation’s controf, which may cause actual results or events
ta differ materialy from those anticipated in such forward{ooking stafements.
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The forward-locking statements contained in this MD&A represent management's reasonable projections, expectations and
estimates as of the date of this document; however, undue refiance should not be placed upon them as they are derved from
numerous assumplions, certain or all of which may prove fo be incorrect. These assumptions are subject fo known and unknowrn
risks and uncertainiies, including the business risks discussed in this MD&A and the nisks discussed in the Corporation’s AlF for
the year ended December 31, 2018, many of which are beyond Painted Pony's control and which may cause actual performance
and financial results to differ materially from any projections of future performance or results expressed orimplied by such forward-
looking statements. In addition, forward-looking statements may include statements or information attributable to third-party
industry sources. Additionally, there can be no assurance that the plans, intenfions or expectations upon which such forward-
looking statements are based will occur.

In particufar, and without Kmitation, this MD&A contains forwarddooking statements pertaining fo the following:

«  the Corporation receiving a natural gas price that exceeds the AECO (5A) benchmark price;

«  expectations with respect to average price estimates for 2019;

«  the expectation that exposure fo Westcoast Station 2 pricing is expected to average below 2% in 20718,

«  the expectation that overall royalties for 2018 will be approximately 2.0% - 2.5% of tolal revenues;

= the expectation thaf average per unit aperating expenses will be between $0.60¢Mcfe and $0.65Mcfe for 2019, assuming
normal seasonal weather conditions;

= the expectation that average per unit transporfation expenses will be befween 30 7OMcfe and $0. 75 Mcfe for 2018;

= the expectation that per unit G&A expenses will average between $0.11/Mcfe to §0.13/Mcfe for 2019;

*  the expectation that the Corporation’'s capital program for 2018 will include drlling 19 (15.0 nef) and completing 18 (18.0
net) welis;

+  the Corporation hawng adequate liquidity to fund working capital requirements and capital expendifures through a
combination of cash fows, available credit facilities, senior notes and convertible debenturas;

+  the Corporation's plans to momitor the commodify, credit and capital markets;

«  expectalions as fo payments in refation to the Townsend Facility,

«  expectations as fo iming and oufcome of the next review of the Corporation’s credit facilities,

«  expectalions as o the estimated costs required to fulfil the Corporafion’s remaining contractual commitments as af
Decamber 31, 2018

«  expectations with respect to the declaration or payment of dividends,

*  expectations that future taxable income will be available to utilize accumulated tax pools;

*  expectations as fo the impact of crfical accounting judgments and estimales;

*  expectations regarding fulure accounting pronouncements and their impact an the Corporation, and

*  expectations regarding the potential setflement between the BRFN and the Province of Brifish Columbia.

With respect to the forward-locking stafements confained in this MD&A, assumptions have been made regarding:
*  the continued switability of the Carporafion's planned capital program;
*  the utiization of available credi faciifies for 2018,
*  the validify of dafa used by GLJ Petroleum Consuffants Ltd ("GLJ") in their independent reserves evalualion;
*  the continued adherence to contractual commifments,
«  the financial position of the applicable entifies mitigating the risk of accounts receivable becoming uncollectible; and
«  the cosf structure of the Corparation.

Certain or all of the forward{ooking sfatements may prove to be incorrect. These forward-ocking statements represent the
Corporation’s views as of the date of this MD&A and such information should not be relied upon as representing the Corporation’s
views as of any date subsegquent to the date of this MD&A. The Corporafion has aftempted to identify important factors that could
cause acfual results, performance or achievements to vary from the current expectalions or esfimates expressed or implied by
the forwarddocking sfatements contained herein. However, there may be other factors thal cause resulfs, performance or
achievements nof to be as expacted or estimated and that could cause acfual results, performance or achievements to differ
maferially from current expectations. Other risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited fo, the folowing:

«  normal risks common fo the oif and gas industry, including explaration, development and production operations risks;

= wvolatility of commodity prices;

«  changes in interest and foreign exchange rates;

«  nisks and uncertainty of petroleum and natural gas geological deposits and reserves estimates;

+  heafth, safety and environmental risks;

+  revisions, amendments or changes to capital expenditure plans including exploration, development and exploitation
projects;

+  uncertainty of estimates and projections of production and costs;

+  unforeseen title defects;

«  nisks arising from future acquisition activities;

«  restrctions contained in the Corporation’s credit facifity;

+  uncertainty of the outcome of the underlying claim against the Province of Biifish Columbia filed by the BRFN and the
risk of delays resulting from the need to change the location of planned activities and a potential reduction in fulure
volumes of natural gas and NGLs available for production by the Corporation;
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+  risks as to the availability and pricing of appropriate financing alfernatives on acceptable terms,

«  potential changes in income tax requiations, governmental policies, rules, practices or approval process changes, or
delays, or enhancements;

+  delays resuffing from adverse weather conditions;

= delays resulting from an inability to oblain required regulatory approvals and ability to access sufficient debt or equily
capital from infernal and external sources, and

+  the Corporation’s ability to altract and retain qualified professional employees and consultants.

Statements relating fo “reserves” or “resources” are by their nature deemed to be forward-locking statements, as they involve
the implied assessment based on certain estimates and assumptions that the resources and reserves described can be profitably
produced in the future.

There can be no assurance that the forward-ooking statements contained herain will prove to be accurate, as results and fulure
events could differ matenally from those expected or estimated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue
reliance on forward-fooking statements. From time to time, Painted Pony's management makes estimates and forms opinions
on which the farward-looking statements are based. The Corporation assumes no obligation to update forward-looking statements
ifcircumstances, management's estimates, or opinions change, unless prescribed by securnifies laws, Furthermors, readers should
be aware that historical results are not necessanly indicative of future performance.

Forecast Prices and Costs

Reserves estimates are calculated using the forecast price and cost assumptions by the reserves evaluator which were in effect
&t the time of the applicable reserves evaluation. The complete GLJ January 1, 2019 price forecast is available on its website
&t glipc.com.

Gross Reserves

Unless otherwise stafed, references to “reserves” are to the Corporation’s gross reserves, defined as the Corporalion’s working
interest (operating or non-operafing) share before deduction of royalfies and withouw! including any royally inferests of the
Corporation.

Estimated Future Net Revenues

Estimated fufure net revenues are stafed before deducting income taxes and fufure estimated site reclamation costs and are
reduced for estimafed future abandonment cosfs and estimated capital for future development associafed with the reserves. The
undiscounted and discountfed net present values disclosed do not represent the fair market value of the reserves.

Potential Transactions

Within its focus area, the Corporation regulany reviews pofential property acquisitions, disposifions and corporate merger and
acquisition opportunities for the purpose of determining whether any such potential fransaction would benefif the Corporafion, as
wall as the ferms on which such a potential transaction would be available. As a result, the Corporation may from time to fime be
involved in discussions or negoliations with other parties or their agents in respect of pofential property acquisitions and corporate
mergerand acquisition oppartunities. The Corporation is not commifted fo any such potential transaction and cannof be reasonably
confident that it can complete any such pofential transaction until appropriate legal documentation has been signed by the refevant
parties.

BOE Conversions

Barrel of oil equivalent amounts have been calculated by using the conversion ratio of six thousand cubic feet (6 Mcf) of natural
gas fo one barrel of oil (1 bbl). Boe amounts may be misleading, particularly if used in isofation. A boe conversion rafic of 6 Mcf
ta 1 bblis based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not represent a
value equivalency at the wellhead.

MCFE Conversions

Thousands of cubic feet of gas equivalent amounts have been calculated by using the conversion ratio of ane barrel of oil (1 bbi)
to six thousand cubic feet (6 Mcf) of natural gas. Mcfe amounts may be misleading, particulary if used inisolation. A conversion
ratio of 1 bbl fo 6 Mcfis based on an energy equivalency conversion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not
represent a value equivalency at the wellhead.

Abbreviations

Mcf thousand cubic feet bbisid barrels per day

Mcfid  thousand cubic feet per day NGLs natural gas liquids

MMcfid million cubic feet per day Mcfe thousand cubic feet equivalent

boe barrels of ol equivalent Mcfe/d thousand cubic feet equivalent per day
boe/d  barrels of ol equivalent per day MMcfe/d million cubic feet equivalent per day
Mbos  thousand barrels of ol equivalent MMBtu million British thermal units

bbils barrels MMBtud million British thermal units per day
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information regarding the Corporation and its business and operations, including its AIF for the year ended
December 31, 2018 is available on the Corporation’s SEDAR profile at www.sedar.com. Copies of the Corporation’s
disclosure can also be obtained by contacting the Corporation at Painted Pony Energy Lid., Suite 1200, 520 - 3

Avenue SW., Calgary, Alberta T2P OR3 (Phone (403) 475-0440), by email at info@paintedpony.ca or on the
Corporation’s website at www.paintedpony.ca.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of Painted Pony Energy Ltd. (the "Corporation”) is responsible for the preparation and integrity of the accompanying
financial statements and all other information contained in this report. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS") and include amounts that are based on management's informed
judgments and estimates where necessary.

The Corporation has established internal accounting control systems which are designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of the Corporation's financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements together with the
other financial information for external purposes in accordance with IFRS,

The Board of Directors, through its Audit & Risk Committee, monitors management's financial and accounting policies and practices
and the preparation of these financial statements. The Audit & Risk Committee meets periodically with the external auditors and
management to review the work of each and the propriety of the discharge of their responsibilities.

The Audit & Risk Committee reviews the financial statements of the Corporation with management and the external auditors prior
to submission to the Board of Directors for final approval, The Board of Directors also reviews the financial statements before
they are finalized. The Board of Directors has approved the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017.

The external auditors have full and free access to the Audit & Risk Committee to discuss auditing and financial reporting matters.
The Audit & Risk Committee reviews the independence of the external auditors and pre-approves audit and permitted non-audit
services and fees. The Shareholders have appointed KPMG LLP as the external auditors of the Corporation, and in that capacity,
they have audited the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

“signed” “signed”
Patrick R. Ward Stuart W. Jaggard
President and CEO CFO
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KPMG LLP

205 Sth Avenue SW
Suite 3100

Calgary AB T2P 4B9
Tel (403) 691-8000
Fax (403) 891-8008
www.kpmg.ca

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of Painted Pony Energy Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Painted Pony Energy Ltd. (*the Entity"), which comprise:
«  the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
« the statements of operations for the years then ended
«  the statements of changes in equity for the years then ended

«  the statements of cash flows for the years then ended
« and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Entity
as at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. OQur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Audifors” Responsibilities far the Audit of the Financial Stafements” section of our auditors”
report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information, Other information comprises.
= the information included in Management's Discussion and Analysis to be filed with the relevant Canadian
Securities Commissions.
= theinformation, otherthan the financial statements and the auditors' report thereon, included in a decument
likely to be entitled 2018 Annual Report”,

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the ather infarmation is materially incensistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit and remain alert for indications that the other information appears to be maternially misstated.

We obtained the information included in Management's Discussion and Analysis filed with the relevant Canadian Securities
Commissions as at the date of this auditors’ report. If, based on the work we have performed on this other information, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact in the auditors' report.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

The information, other than the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon, included in a document likely to be entitled
“2018 Annual Report” is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors” report. If, based on the work we will
perform on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other information, we are required to
report that fact to those charged with governance.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liguidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thase charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism through the audit.

We also:
= |Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal contral.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit,

*  Provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this auditors’ report is Jason Stuart Brown.

KPM6G ue

Chartered Professional Accountants

Calgary, Canada
March &, 201%
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PAINTED PONY ENERGY LTD.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

($000s)
As at December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Accounts receivable (note 16} 05,632 39115
Prepaid expenses and deposits 2,229 1,664
Fair value of risk management contracts (note 16) 35215 85,016
92,976 105,795
Mon-current assets
Fair value of risk management contracts (note 16) 7,350 22552
Exploration and evaluation (note 5) 130,348 154,004
Property, plant and equipment {nofe &) 1,624 680 1,744,202
2,055 354 2,031,643
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 51,813 66,931
Share unit iability (nofe 15) 2,063 2,004
Fair value of risk management contracts (note 16) 530 553
Current portion of finance lease obligation (note 18) 5680 3,282
60,086 72,770
Mon-current liabilities
Fair value of risk management contracts (note 16) 2,834 204
Bank debt (note 7) 163,140 149,228
Senior notes (note 8) 143,105 141,613
Convertible debentures (nofe 8 46,113 44 887
Deferred tax (note 72) 10,204 7772
Decommissioning obligation (nofe 13) 23,965 45,811
Finance lease obligation (note 18} 484 118 487,578
963,865 950,953
EQUITY
Share capital fnote 14) 1,015,235 1,015,235
Equity portion of convertible debentures (nate 9) 2,382 2,382
Contributed surplus 58,038 56,203
Retained earnings 14,934 7,870
1,081,489 1,080,650
2,055 354 2,031,643

Commitments (notes 78 & 79}

See accompanying notes to the financiaf statements,
Approved on behalf of the Board;

*signed” Joan E. Dunne “signed” Patrick R. Ward
Director Director
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PAINTED PONY ENERGY LTD.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(F000s, except per share amounts)

Years ended December 31,

2018 2017

Revenue
Petroleum and natural gas (nofe 20) 404 372 2449 186
Royalties (6,345) (4,901)

398,027 244 285
Realized gain on risk management contracts (note 16) 38,650 44 002
Unrealized gain (loss) on risk management contracts (nofe 76} (48,608) 146,465

388,084 434 752
Expenses
Operating 72,830 59,834
Transportation 89 876 39,197
General and administrative 16,958 16,482
Costs on acquisition of UGR Blair Creek Ltd. (nofe 4) — 5,497
Share-based compensation (note 74 and 15 2777 481
Exploration and evaluation (note 5) 1,716 —
Depletion and depreciation (note 6) 107,513 83,887

291,670 206,378
Income from operations 96,399 229,374
Finance expense {note 11) (86,203) (61,591)
Income before taxes 10,198 167,783
Deferred tax expense (nofe 12) (3,132) (45,407)
Net income and comprehensive income 7,064 122,376
Met income and comprehensive income per share;
Basic (nofe 10) &0.04 &80.87
Diluted (note 70} £0.04 $0.85

See gccompanying notes to the financial statements.
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PAINTED PONY ENERGY LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(8000s, except shares)

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Mumber of W.-E?.h' I.I:ﬁ ) Retained

Common Share  convertible Confributed  earnings /
Shares capital  debentures surplus (deficit) Total equity
Balance at December 31, 2016 100,158,192 887,71 —_ 52,115 (114,506) 625,310
Acquisition of UGR Blair Creek Ltd. (note 4} 41,000,000 220170 — — —_— 220170
Issuance of shares (nofe 74) 189,820,000 110,992 — — —_— 110,992
Share issue costs, net of tax impact — (3,730) — — —_ (3,730)
Share-based compensation —_ _ —_— 3,118 _— 3,118
Stock options exercised (nofe 74) 17.500 102 — (30) — 72
o o i oy - - @ - - 2m
Met income and comprehensive income — — — — 122,376 122376
Balance at December 31, 2017 160,995,692 1,015,235 2,382 55,203 7870 1,080,690
Share-based compensation —_ - —_ 3,735 _— 3,735
Met income and comprehensive income — — — — T7.0654 7.064
Balance at December 31, 2018 160,995,692 1,015,235 2382 58,938 14,5934 1,081,488

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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PAINTED PONY ENERGY LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(8000s)

Years ended December 31,

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities:
Met income and comprehensive income 7,064 122 376
Adjustments for;
Depletion and depreciation 107,513 83,887
Exploration and evaluation 1,716 =
Share-based compensation 2,757 2,205
Accretion expense 3,845 1,794
Deferred income tax expense 3,132 45 407
Unrealized (gain) loss on risk management contracts 48,608 (148,4865)
Changes in non-cash working capital (5,604) (2,287)
168,035 106,917
Cash flows from investing activities:
Property, plant and equipment additions (154,360) (302.614)
Cash assumed on acquisition of LUGR Blair Creek Lid. — 864
Changes in non-cash working capital (22,513) (4,195)
(176.873) (305,945)
Cash flows from financing activities:
lssuance of shares — 110,992
Exercise of stock options — 72
Increase (repayment) in bank debt 12,824 (99,825)
Repayment of finance lease (1,062) —_
Share issue costs —_ (5,074)
Issuance of senior notes - 141,115
Issuance of convertible debentures - 47,718
Changes in non-cash working capital (3,924) 4 030
7.838 199,028

Change in cash and cash equivalents —_ —_

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year —_ —_

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year = =

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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PAINTED PONY ENERGY LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

REPORTING ENTITY

Painted Pony Energy Ltd.'s (“"Painted Pony” orthe “Corporation”) principal business activity is the development and production
of petroleum and natural gas resources in western Canada. The financial statements of the Corporation as at and for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 include the accounts of the Corporation. On January 1, 2018, the Corporation's
wholly owned subsidiaries, UGR Blair Creek Ltd. and Painted Rock Resources Ltd., were amalgamated with the Corporation.
The Corporation's head office is located at 1200, 520 - 3 Avenue SW., Calgary, Alberta.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASE"). The financial statements were authorized for issuance by
the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the "Board™) on March 6, 2019.

The financial staterments have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for risk management contracts and share
and cash settled awards, which are measured at fair value. The methods used to measure fair value are discussed in note
17.

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Corporation’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilties, revenue and
expenses. Actual results may differ matenally from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions to accounting estimates recognized
in the peried in which the estimates are revised and in any applicable future periods.

(a) Critical Accounting Judgments
The following are critical judgments that management has made in the process of applying accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Cash-Generating Units

The Corporation’s assets are aggregated into cash-generating units ("*CGU" or *CGUs") for the purpose of assessing
impairment. CGlUs are based on an assessment of the unit's ability to generate independent cash inflows. The
determination of these CGUs was based on management's judgment in regard to shared infrastructure, geographical
proximity, petroleum type and exposure to market risk and materiality. By their nature, these assumptions are subject
to management's judgment and may impact the carrying value of the Corporation’s net assets in future periods.

Impairment Indicators

Judgments are required to assess when impairment indicators exist and impairment testing is required. The Corporation
is required to consider information from both external sources (such as negative downturn in commedity prices, significant
adverse changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the entity operates) and internal
sources (such as downward revisions in reserves, significant adverse effect on the financial and operational performance
of a CGLU, evidence of obsolescence or physical damage to the asset). In determining the recoverable amount of assets,
in the absence of quoted market prices, impairment tests are based on estimates of reserves, production rates, future
petroleum and natural gas prices, future costs, discount rates, market value of land and other relevant assumptions.

The application ofthe Corporation’s accounting policy forexploration and evaluation ("E&E") assets requires management
to make ceriain judgments as to future events and circumstances as to whether economic guantities of reserves have
been found.

Deferred Taxes

In determining its deferred tax provisions, the Corporation must apply judgment when interpreting and applying tax laws
and regulations. The determination of the appropriate rules may be uncertain for many periods. The final outcome could
resultin amounts different fromthose inftially recorded and could impacttax expense inthe periods where a determination
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is made, Judgments are also made by management to determine the likelihood of whether deferred tax assets at the
end of the reporting period will be realized from future taxable income.

(b} Critical Accounting Estimates
The fallowing are key estimates made by management affecting the measurement of balances and transactions in these
financial statements

Impact of Reserves

Estimation of recoverable quantities of proved and probable reserves includes estimates regarding future commodity
prices, exchange rates, discount rates and production and transportation expenses for future cash flows as well as the
interpretation of complex geological and geophysical models and data. Changes in expected future cash flows in reported
reserves can affect the impairment of assets, the decommissioning obligation, the economic feasibility of E&E assets
and the amounts reported for depletion and depreciation of property, plant and equipment ("PP&E"), and the recognition
of deferred tax assets. These reserve estimates are prepared in accordance with the Canadian Qil and Gas Evaluation
Handbook and are verified by independent gualified reserve evaluators, who work with information provided by the
Corporation to establish reserve determinations in accordance with National Instrument 51-101 - Sfandards of Disclosure
for Oif and Gas Activities ("NI 51-1017).

In a business combination, management makes estimates of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
which includes assessing the value of petroleum and natural gas properties based upon the estimation of recoverable
quantities of proved and probable reserves being acquired.

Share-Based Compensation

All equity-settled, share-based awards issued by the Corporation are fair valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model, In assessing the fair value of equity-based compensation, estimates have to be made regarding the expected
volatility in share price, option life, dividend yield, risk-free rate and estimated forfeitures at the initial grant date.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Painted Pony records risk management contracts at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the statements
of operations. The Corporation's estimate of the fair value is determined using observable market data and external
counterparty information, including estimated forward prices and volatility in those prices.

Decommissioning Obligation

The Corporation estimates future remediation costs of production facilities, wells and pipelines at different stages of
development and construction of assets or facilities. In most instances, removal of assets oceurs many years into the
future. This requires estimates regarding abandonment date, future environmental and regulatory legislation, the extent
of reclamation activities, the engineering methodelogy for estimating cost, future removal technologies in determining
the removal cost and hability-specific discount rates to determine the present value of these cash flows.

Deferred Taxes

Tax provisions are based on enacted or substantively enacted laws. Changes in those laws could affect amounts
recognized in the statement of operations both in the peried of change, which would include any impact on cumulative
provisions, and in future periods.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent it is considered probable that those assets will be recoverable.
This involves an assessment of when those deferred tax assets are likely to reverse and a judgment as to whether or
not there will be sufficient taxable income available to offset the tax assets when they do reverse. This requires
assumptions regarding future profitability and is therefore inherently uncertain. Estimates of future taxable income are
based on forecasted cash flows from operations.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presentad in these financial statements by
Corporation.

(a) Basis of Consolidation
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Corporation. Control exists when the Corporation has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential

voting rights that currently are exercisable are taken into account, The financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consclidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
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Business Combinations

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for acquisitions of subsidiaries and assets that meet the definition
of a business under IFRS. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liakilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of operations.

Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets

A portion of the Corporation's petreleum and natural gas activities involve jointly controlled assets. The consolidated
financial statements include the Corporation's share of these jointly controlled assets and a proportionate share of the
relevant revenue and related costs,

Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation
Intercompany balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intercompany
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Financial instruments

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified into three categories: Amortized Cost, Fair Value through Cther
Comprehensive Income ("FVYTOCI") and Fair Value through Profit and Loss ("FVTPL"). The classification of financial
assets is determined by their context in the Corporation's business model and by the characteristics of the financial
asset's contractual cash flows.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition, which is typically the transaction
price unless a financial instrument contains a significant financing component, Subsequent measurement is dependent
on the financial instrument's classification.

(iy Amortized Cost
Accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and deposits, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, bank debt, senior
notes and debt portion of convertible debentures are measured at amortized cost. The contractual cash flows
received from the financial assets are solely payments of principal and interest and are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows. The financial assets and financial liabilities are subsegquently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

(i) Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Risk management contracts, deferred share units ("D3SUs"), preferred share units ("P3LUs") and restricted share
units ("“RSUs"), all of which are derivatives, are measured initially at FVTPL and are subsequently measured at fair
value with changes in fair value immediately charged to the statements of operations.

(iii} Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
As at December 31, 2018, the Corporation does not have any financial instruments measured at FVTOCI,

Compound Financial Instruments

The Corporation's compound financial instruments are comprised of its convertible debentures that can be converted
into common shares in the capital of the Corporation (*"Commeon Share” or *Common Shares”) at the option of the holder.
The hability component of the convertible debentures is recognized initially at fair value of a similar liability that does not
hawve an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognized initially as the difference between the fair value
of the convertible debenture and the fair value of the hability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated tothe liability and equity components in proportion to theirinitial carrying values. Subsequenttoinitial recognition
the liability component of the convertible debentures is measured at amorized cost using the effective interest rate
method. The equity component of the convertible debentures is not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Corporation has entered into certain financial nsk management contracts in order to manage the exposure to market
risks from fluctuations in commeodity prices and foreign currency. These instruments are not used fortrading or speculative
purposes. The Corporation has not designated its financial risk management contracts as effective accounting hedges
and, therefore, has not applied hedge accounting, even though the Corporation considers all risk management contracts
to be economic hedges. As a result, all financial nsk management contracts are classified as FVTPL and are recorded
on the statement of financial position at fair value. Transaction costs are recognized in the statement of operations when
incurred.
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Impairment of Financial Assets

Impairment of financial assets is determined by measuring the assets’ expected credit loss ("ECL"). Accounts
receivable are due within one year or less; therefore, these financial assets are not considered to have a significant
financing compoenent and a lifetime ECL is measured at the date of initial recognition of the accounts receivable, ECL
allowances have not been recognized for cash and cash equivalents due to the virtual certainty associated with their
collection,

The ECL pertaining to accounts receivable is assessed at initial recognition and this provision is re-assessed at each
reporting date. ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of all possible default events related to the financial asset (over
the lifetime or within 12 months after the reporting period, as applicable) and are measured as the difference between
the present value of the cash flows due to the Corporation and the cash flows the Corporation expects to receive,
including cash flows expected from collateral and other credit enhancements that are a part of contractual terms. In
making an assessment as to whether financial assets are credit-impaired, the Corporation considers historically realized
had debts, evidence of a debtor’s present financial condition and whether a debtor has breached certain contracts, the
probability that a debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, changes in economic conditions that
comrelate to increased levels of default, the number of days a debtor is past due in making a contractual payment, and
the term to matunty of the specified receivable. The carmying amounts of financial assets are reduced by the amount of
the ECL through an allowance account and losses are recognized within general and administrative ("G&A") expense
in the statement of operations.

Exploration and Evaluation Assets and Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

(i) Explorafion and evaluation assels
Pre-license costs are expensed as incurred. E&E costs, including the costs of acquinng licenses, seismic, exploration
drilling and directly aftributable general and administrative costs initially are capitalized as E&E assets according
to the nature of the assets acquired. The costs are accumulated in cost centers pending determination of technical
feasibility and commercial viability.

The technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource is considered to be determinable
when proved or probable reserves are determined to exist. Areview is carried out, on a quarterly basis, to ascertain
whether proved or probable reserves have been discoverad, Upon determination of proved or probable reserves,
EAE assets aftributable to those reserves are first tested for impairment and then reclassified from E&E assets to
PP&E.

(i} Property, plant and equipment
Iterms of PP&E, which include petraleum and natural gas development and production assets, and finance lease
assels, are measured at cost less accumulated depletion, depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
Development and production assets are grouped into CGUs for impairment testing. When significant parts of an
itern of PP&E, including petroleumn and natural gas interests, have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items,

Gains and losses on disposal of PP&E, are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal, or fair value of
properties received, with the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of operations.

Costs incurred subsequent to the determination of technical feasibility and commercial viability and the costs of
replacing parts of PP&E are recognized as petroleum and natural gas interests only when they increase the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific assets to which they relate, All other expenditures are recognized in
the statement of operations as incurred. Such capitalized petroleum and natural gas interests generally represent
costs incurred in developing proved andfor probable reserves and bringing on or enhancing preduction from such
reserves, The carrying amount of any replaced or sold component is derecognized. The costs of periodic servicing
of PP&E are recognized in the statement of operations.

Depletion and Depreciation

The net carrying value of development or production assets and finance lease assets are depleted using the unit of
production method by reference to the ratio of production in the period to the related proved and probable reserves,
taking into account estimated future development costs necessary to bring those reserves into production. Future
development costs are estimated taking into account the level of development required to produce the reserves, These
estimates are reviewed by independent reserve engineers on an annual basis, at a minimum.

Proved and probable reserves are estimated using independent reserve engineer reports in accordance with NI 51-101

and represent the estimated guantities of petroleum, natural gas and natural gas liquids ("NGLs") which geological,
geophysical and engineering data demonstrate with a specified degree of certainty to be recoverable in future years
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from known reservoirs and which are considered commercially producible. There should be a 50 percent statistical
probability thatthe actual quantity of recoverable reserves will be more than the amount estimated as proved and probable
and a 50 percent statistical probability that it will be less. The equivalent statistical probabilities for proved reserve
components are 90 percent and 10 percent, respectively.

Such reserves may be considered commercially producible if management has the intention of developing and preducing
them and such intention is based upon:

+  areasonable assessment of the future economics of such preduction;

«  areasonable expectation that there is a market for all or substantially all the expected petroleum and natural gas
production; and

«  evidence that the necessary production, transmission and transportation facilities are available or can be made
available

In determining reserves for use in the depletion and impairment calculations, a barrel of oil equivalent ("boe”) conversion
ratio of six thousand cubic feet of gas ("Mcf") to one barrel of il (*bbl") (6 Mef.1 bbl) is used as an energy equivalency
conversion method.

For aother assets, depreciation is recognized in the statement of operations on a declining-balance rate of 20% based
on their estimated useful lives. E&E assets are not depreciated.

Impairment

Nen-financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Corporation’s non-financial assets, other than E&E assets and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed whenever there is an indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into CGLUs, being the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets. The recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal.

Fair value less costs of disposal is derived by estimating the discounted after-tax future net cash flows from proved plus
probable oil and gas reserves, adjusted for the discounted abandonment and reclamation costs on proved plus probable
undeveloped oil and gas reserves. Discounted future net cash flows are based on forecasted commedity prices and
costs over the expected economic life of the reserves and discounted using market-based rates to reflect a market
participant's view of the risks associated with the assets. Value in use is assessed using the expected future cash flows
from proved plus probable oil and gas reserves discounted at a pre-tax rate, adjusted for the discounted abandonment
and reclamation costs associated with wells without reserves and facilities that relate to the CGUs.

E&E assets are assessed for impairment if: (i) sufficient data exists to determine technical feasibility and commercial
viability, or (ii) facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Animpairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of operations. For purposes of impairment testing, E&E assets are
combined with cash-generating units.

Impairment losses recognized in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depletion and depreciation, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.

Leased Assets

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the statement of operations on a straight-line basis (or as
otherwise contractually defined) over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized as par of the total
lease expense over the term of the lease.

Leases which transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. On initial
recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assetis accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy applicable to the asset. Minimurm lease payments are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction
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of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Share Capital
Common Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of shares and stock options
are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of tax

Share-Based Compensation

The Corporation has issued stock options to acquire Commeon Shares to executive officers and employees. Non-employee
directors are not eligible for grants of stock options. The fair value of stock options on the date they are granted is
recognized as share-based compensation expense with a corresponding increase in contributed surplus over the vesting
period. Aforfeiture rate is estimated on the grant date, and the expense is adjusted to reflect actual forfeitures throughout
the vesting period. The Corporation uses the Black-Scholes model to estimate fair value

The Corporation has issued DSUs to members of the Board and eligible executive officers. Each DSU is a notional unit
equal in value to a Common Share, which entitles the holder to a cash payment upon redemption. DSUs are measured
at fair value upon grant and each period end date, using the 20-day VWAP average price of Common Shares, DSUs
are classified as fair value through profit or loss and are recorded on the statement of financial position at fair value

The Corporation has issued PSUs to eligible executive officers. Each PSU is a notional unit equal in value to a Comman
Share, which entitles the holder to a cash payment upon redemption. PSUs are measured at fair value through profit
or loss and are recorded on the statement of financial position at fair value,

The Corporation has issued RSUs to eligible employees and executive officers. Each RSU is a notional unit equal in
value to a Common Share, which entitles the holder to a cash payment on redemption. RSUs are measured at fair value
through profit or loss and are recorded on the statement of financial position at fair value,

A portion of share-based compensation directly attributable to the exploitation and development of the Corporation's
assets is capitalized.

Provisions

A provision i1s recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax risk free rate.

Decommissioning Obligation
The Corporation’s activities give nise to dismantling, decommissioning and site disturbance remediation activities.
Provision is made for the estimated cost of site restoration and is capitalized in the relevant asset category.

The decommissioning obligation 15 measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present cbligation at the reporting date. Subsequent to the initial measurement, the obligation is
adjusted at the end of each period to reflect the passage oftime and changes in the estimated future cash flows underlying
the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance expense whereas
increasesfdecreases due to changes in the estimated future cash flows are capitalized. Actual costs incurred upon
seftlerment of the decommissioning obligation are charged against the provision to the extent the provision had been
established.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue associated with the sale of natural gas and NGLs is measured based on the consideration specified in the
contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Corporation recognizes revenue
when it transfers control of the product or service to a customer, which is generally when the title transfers from the
Corporation to the customer.

The Corporation satisfies its perforrmance cbligations in contracts with customers upon delivery of natural gas and NGLs
at a point in time, when fitle transfers to the customer.

Finance Expense

Finance expense consists of interest expense and standby fees on credit facilities, costs related to the implementation
of the credit facilities, accretion on the decommissioning obligation, senior notes and convertible debentures, and costs
associated with the finance lease obligation.
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Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax expense and is recognized in the statement of operations except
to the extent that it relates to tems recognized directly in equity.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognized on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to setfle current tax liabilities and assets
an a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is likely that future taxable income will be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer likely that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Foreign Currency Translation

The principal currency of the economic environment in which the Corporation operates is the Canadian dollar. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at exchange rates in effect
at the end of the period, and revenues and expenses are translated into Canadian dollars at average exchange rates.
All translation gains and losses are recorded in the statement of operations.

Per Share Information

Basic per share information is calculated on the basis of the weighted average number of Comman Shares cutstanding
during the period. Diluted per share information reflects the potential dilutive effect of stock options and convertible
debentures. Anti-dilutive instruments are not included in the determination of diluted income (loss) per share.

Changes to Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments

Effective January 1, 2018, the Corporation adopted IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” and applied the standard on a
retrospective basis. IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and
some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces |1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. The application of IFRS 9 has not resulted in any differences between the previous carrying amounts
and the carrying amounts at the date of initial application of IFRS 9.

Revenue Recognition

Effective January 1, 2018, the Corporation adopted IFRS 15 *Revenue from Contracts with Customers®, and applied
the standard on a modified retrospective basis. IFRS 15 provides guidance onthe nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Corperation has reviewed all revenue contracts
with customers, and has determined that there is no material impact on the financial statements with respect to the
application of IFRS 15, IFRS 15 replaces |1AS 18 and |1AS 11

The Carporation principally generates revenue from the sale of natural gas and NGLs, and revenue associated with the
sale of natural gas and NGLs is recognized when contral is transferred from the Corporation to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with the customer. Payment terms for the
Corporation's natural gas and MNGL contracts are within one month following delivery. The Corporation does not have
any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a result, the Corporation does not adjust revenue transactions for the time value of money.

Management has applied the following expedients as part of the adoption of the standard.

+  Contracts that started and were completed in the comparative period were not restated - no changes were
made to the revenue recognized under the previous standard for contracts for which the entity transferred all
of the goods or services identified during the comparative perod;

+  Exemption from applying vanable consideration requirements - the transaction price at the end of completion
of the contract has been used, rather than estimating variable consideration in each comparative reporting
period; and

+  Disclosure exemption - for reporting periods before the date of initial application, no disclosure was included
about the amount of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations and when these were
expected to be recognized in revenue.

Refer to note 20 for additional disclosures.
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Leases

In January 2016, the |1AS issued IFRS 16 Leases ("IFRS 167), which replaces |AS 17 “Leases”, and provides that a single
recognition and measurement model for leases would apply, with reguired recognition of assets and liabilities for most
leases, Forlessees, IFRS 16 removes the classification of leases as either operating or finance leases, effectively treating
all leases as finance leases, Certain short-term leases (less than 12 months) and leases of low value assets are exempt
from the requirements, and may continue to be treated as operating leases.

The Corporation adopted IFRS 16 effective January 1, 2019, and is in the process of finalizing its analysis with respect
to the determination of leases. The Corporation is analyzing whether the existing finance lease obligation totaling $490
million as at December 31, 2018 meetsthe definition of a lease. Inthe eventthatthe finance lease obligation is determined
not to be a lease, the balance will be removed from the statement of financial position with a reduction to property, plant
and equipment and an adjustment to retained earnings. Further, the removal of the finance lease obligation would result
in a reduction to finance and depletion expense and an increase in operating costs in the statement of operations. The
Corporation has determined that office leases for both the corporate and field locations will be added to the Statement
of Financial Position effective January 1, 2019, The Corporation has elected to apply the optional exemptions for short-
term and low-value leases.

4. ACQUISITION OF UGR BLAIR CREEK LTD.

Effective May 16, 2017, the Corporation acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of UGR Blair Creek Ltd. ("UGR")
in exchange for the issuance of 41.0 million Common Shares of the Corporation with an assigned value of $220.2 million.
The Commoen Shares were ascribed a fair value of $5.37 per Common Share issued, as determined based onthe Corporation's
closing share price atthe date of closing, being May 16, 2017. The UGR acquisition is a strategic expansion ofthe Corporation's
Montney project in northeast British Columbia, providing for an expansion of the Corporation's land base, natural gas
processing infrastructure, reserves and drilling inventory. The operations from the UGR acquisition have been included in
the results of the Corporation commencing May 18, 2017, Acquisition costs of $5.5 million were expensed through the
statement of operations. The UGR acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The allocation
of the purchase price, based on management’s estimates of fair values, is as follows:

(8000s)

Fair value of the net assets acquired:
Cash 854
Cther current assets 5,684
Current liabilities (8,865)
Risk management contracts 775
Property, plant and equipment 207 491
Exploration and evaluation 58,743
Bank debt (48,217)
Decommissioning obligation (1,083)
Deferred tax asset 4,588

Net assets acquired 220170

Consideration:
Common Shares (41.0 million shares @ $5.37/share) 220,170

On acquisition, the Corporation recorded the decommissioning obligation at a credit adjusted risk free rate resulting in a
decommissioning obligation totaling 1.1 million. Subsequent to the date of acquisition, the decommissioning obligation
was revalued using the risk free rate, resulting in an adjustment of $7.1 million, with a corresponding increase to property,
plant and equipment.

Included in the statement of operations are the following ameounts relating to the UGR acquisition fram May 16, 2017 to
December 31, 2017,
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Revenue 24 542

Met income and comprehensive income 10,115

If the UGR acquisition had cccurred on January 1, 2017, the Corporation’'s estimated pro forma results of revenue and net
income and comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017 would have been as follows:

($000s}
UGR acquisition
Painted Pony  (January 1, 2017 to
Energy Ltd. closing date) Pro forma results
Revenue 2449 186 17,868 267, 054
Met income and comprehensive income 122,376 8,765 128,141
5. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

($000s)

As at December 31, 2016 114,251
UGR acquisition (note 4) oB,743
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (13,990)

As at December 31, 2017 159,004

Transfer to property, plant and equipment (26,940)
Expensed (1,716)
As at December 31, 2018 130,348

Exploration and evaluation assets consistof undeveloped lands and unevaluated seismic data onthe Corporation's exploration
projects which are pending the determination of proved or probable reserves. Additions represent the Corporation's share
of costs incurred on E&E assets during the period. Transfers are made to property, plant and equipment as proved or probable
reserves are determined and as ongoing wells are drilled within the Corporation's CGU. E&E assets were expensed in 2018
due to lease expiries. The Corporation assesses the recoverability of EAE assets on the transfer to PPEE.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

($000s)

Cost:

As at December 31, 2016 1,378,086
Capital expenditures 302,614
UGR acquisition (note 4) 207,49
Finance lease assets 130,000
Mon-cash additions 15,886
Transfer from exploration and evaluation 13,990

As at December 31, 2017 2048 087
Capital expenditures 154,360
Mon-cash additions 6,601
Wite off of office assets and leasehold improvements (2,313)
Transfer from exploration and evaluation 26,940

As at December 31, 2018 2,233,655
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Accumulated depletion and depreciation:

As at December 31, 2016 219,888
Depletion and depreciation 83,887
As at December 31, 2007 303,775
Wiite off of office assets and leasehold improvements (2,313)
Depletion and depreciation 107,513
As at December 31, 2018 408,975

Carrying amounts:
December 31, 2017 1,744 262
December 31, 2018 1,624,680

Estimated future development costs associated with the development of the Corporation's proved plus probable resenves
were $3.5 billion at Decemnber 31, 2018 (December 31, 2017 - $4.1 billion).

Capitalized General and Administrative Expense, Recoveries and Share-Based Compensation

(F000s) Years ended December 31,

2018 2017
General and administrative and unit awards 6,923 5,764
Capital recoveries 1,735 3,339
Share-based compensation a78 913
Total 9,636 10,016
BANK DEBT

As at December 31, 2018, the Corporation's syndicated credit facilities consisted of available credit facilities of $400 millian.
The available facilties are provided by a syndicate of financial institutions, and include a $350 million extendable revolving
facility and a $50 million operating facility. The facilities revolve for a two-year period, which is extendable annually, subject
to syndicate approval. The facilities are subject to semi-annual review and re-determination of borrowing base by Aprnl 30
and October 31 of each year, or in the circumstance of a matenal adverse change. Any re-determination of the borrowing
hase is effective immediately, and if the borrowing base is reduced, the Corporation has 60 days to repay any shortfall.

The credit facilities bear interest on a matrix system that ranges from the bank's prime rate plus 1.0% to the bank's prime
rate plus 2 25% per annum depending on the Corporation’'s senior debt to quarterly annualized EBITDA ratio as defined by
the lenders, ranging from less than 1.00:1 to 3.00:1. This ratio is calculated as senior debt, defined as outstanding loans and
borrowings plus or minus working capital, excluding the fair value of risk management contracts, less the principal amount
of the Corporation's unsecured notes and convertible debentures; divided by the guarterly annualized EBITDA, defined as
net income plus finance expense excluding the costs associated with the finance lease obligation, plus income taxes and
adjustments for earnings or losses attributable to extraordinary and non-recurming gains or losses, as well as adjustments
for any non-cash items including depreciation, depletion, amortization, deferred income taxes and non-cash gains or losses
resulting from marking-to-market the cutstanding risk management contracts.

The credit facilities provide that advances may be made by way of prime rate loans, U.5. Base Rate loans, London InterBank
Offered Rate ("LIBOR") loans, bankers’ acceptances, letters of credit or letters of guarantee. Astandby fee of 0.5%t0 0.8125%
per annum is charged on the undrawn portion of the credit facilities, also calculated depending on the Corporation’s senior
debt to quarterly annualized EBITDA ratio, which was 0.80:1.00 at December 31, 2018.

As at December 31, 2018, Painted Pony had USD $108.5 million {(CAD $147 million) outstanding in a LIBOR loan, as well
as $20 million in bankers' acceptances outstanding with an effective interest rate of 4.2% per annum. In addition, as at
December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Corporation had outstanding letters of credit totaling $21.5 million and USD
$15.0 million (CAD $20.5 million), which reduce the credit available on the syndicated facilities. Unrealized foreign exchange
loss on translation of the USD LIBOR loan was $1.1 million at December 31, 2018, which subsequently reversed in January
2018,
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Security over all of the Corporation's assets is provided by a floating charge demand debenture in the aggregate amount of
$1.0 billion. The Corporation has provided a negative pledge and an undertaking to provide fixed charges over its petroleum
and natural gas reserves in certain circumstances, The syndicated facilities are not subject to financial covenants

SENIOR NOTES

On August 23, 2017, the Corporation issued $150.0 million of 8.5% senior unsecured notes (the "Motes”") with a five year
term by way of private placement. Proceeds net of discount and transaction costs of $8.9 million amounted to $141.1 million.
Interest is payable in equal quarterly installments in arrears. The Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to the
payment of principal and interest, on a senior unsecured basis by the Corporation. There are no maintenance financial
covenants.

The Motes are non-callable by the Corporation prior to the three year anniversary. If the Corporation chooses to redeem the
Motes prior to August 23, 2020, they will be subject to a make-whole premium egual to the Canada Yield Price, plus accrued
and unpaid interest. At any time on or after August 23, 2020, the Corporation can redeem all or part of the Motes at the
redemption prices set forth in the table below plus any accrued and unpaid interest.

Redemption Schedule Percentage
August 23, 2020 - August 22, 2021 104_250%
August 23, 2021 - February 22, 2022 102.125%
February 23, 2022 - August 23, 2022 100.000%

If a change of control event occurs at any time before maturity, the Corporation must offer to repurchase the Notes at a
price according to the redemption schedule above.

The Motes were recorded at their fair value on the date of issuance of $141.1 million. Accretion of the liability will be included
in finance expense in the statement of operations. At December 31, 2018 the carrying value of the Notes was 5143, 1 million
(December 31, 2017 - 5141.6 million). Accretion expense of $1.5 million was recorded in the statement of operations for the
year ended December 31, 2018 (for the year ended December 31, 2017 - 30.5 million).

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

{$000s) Liability component Equity component
As at December 31, 2016 — —
Issuance of convertible debentures 46,607 3,393
|ssue costs (2,128) (154}
Deferred tax liability — (857)
Accretion of discount 408 o

As at December 31, 2017 44 887 2,382
Accretion of discount 1,226 —

As at December 31, 2018 46,113 2,382

On August 23, 2017, the Corporation issued $50.0 million of convertible unsecured subordinated debentures (the
‘Debentures”) for net proceeds of $47.7 million. The Debentures mature on August 23, 2021 and bear interest at 6.5% per
annum payable quarterly. At the holder's option, the Debentures may be converted into Common Shares of the Corporation
at any time prior to the close of business on the date of maturity at a conversion price of $5.60 per share (the “conversion
price”).

The Debentures are non-redeemable by the Corporation between January 1, 2019 and February 22, 2020 other than pursuant
to the 0% redemption night (see change of control below). The Debentures are redeemable by the Corporation between
February 23, 2020 and August 23, 2021 at a redemption price egual to the principal amount plus interest. Redemption may
be satisfied in Common Shares if the 30-day VWAF on notice date and the closing price immediately prior to notice date are
both greater than 140% of the conversion price.
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10.

Cn maturity, the Corporation may satisfy its obligation to Debenture holders by issuing Commen Shares if the Corporation's
market capitalization exceeds $750 million. The number of Common Shares issued is calculated based on 95% of the lesser
of the 30-day VWAP and the 2-day VWAP on the date of maturity.

Upon occurrence of a change of control event, the Corporation must offer to repurchase the Debentures at a price according
to the schedule below. If 90% or more of the principal amount accept the offer, the Corporation shall have the right to
repurchase 100% of the Debentures outstanding.

Percentage of

Redemption Schedule Principal
January 1, 2019 - February 22, 2020 105.000%
February 23, 2020 - August 23, 2021 100.000%

The liability component of the Debentures was recognized initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an
equity conversion option, which was calculated based on a market interest rate of 8.5%. The difference between the $50.0
million principal amount of the Debentures and the fair value ofthe liability component was recognized in shareholder's equity,
net of deferred taxes. Total transaction costs directly attributable to the offering of $2.3 million were allocated to the liability
and equity components of the Debentures proportionately.

Accretion of the liability component and accrued interest payable on the Debentures are included in accretion and financing

expense respectively, in the statement of operations, At December 31, 2018 the carrying value of the Debentures was $46.1
million (December 31, 2017 - $44.9 million).

NET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME PER SHARE

Years ended December 31,

2018 2017
Met income and comprehensive income - basic (§000's) 7,064 122 376
Met income and comprehensive income - diluted ($000's) 7,054 123,227
Weighted average Common Shares - basic 160,995 692 140,717,740
Weighted average Common Shares- diluted 160,995 692 144,149 853
MNet income per share - basic (§/shars) 0.04 0.87
Met income per share - diluted (&share) 0.04 0.85

The average market value of the Common Shares of the Corporation for purposes of determining the dilutive effect of
outstanding stock options was based on quoted market prices for the period. For the year ended December 31, 2018, there
were 8 825,075 stock options excluded from the weighted-average diluted share calculation of Common Shares as they
were anti-dilutive (December 31, 2017 - 10,045,293).

Faor the year ended December 31, 2018 there were 8 828 571 potential Common Shares related to the conversion of the
convertible debentures that were excluded from the weighted-average diluted share calculation, as they were anti-dilutive.
For the year ended December 31, 2017, 3,180,039 potential Common Shares were included in diluted net income and
comprehensive income per share.
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11. FINANCE EXPENSE

12

*

Years ended December 31,

{$000s) 2018 2017
Finance lease expense 56,927 44 157
Interest expense 25427 15,640
Accretion 3,848 1,794
Total 86,203 61,591

Finance lease expense is a component of the capital fee paid on facilities treated as a finance lease, and is based on the
committed share of production volumes processed through a facility. The capital fee includes finance lease expense and any
amortization ofthe cutstanding finance lease obligation. Interest expense includes interest on bank debt and standby charges
on the Corporation's syndicated credit facilities, as well as interest on the senior notes and convertible debentures. Accretion
expense consists of accretion on the decommissioning obligation, senior notes and convertible debentures.

DEFERRED TAX

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

(E000s) Years ended December 31,
2018 2017
Income before taxes 10,196 167,783
Combined corporate tax rate 27.0% 26.5%
Expected tax reduction 2,753 44,452
Mon-deductible expenses 139 337
Mon-deductible share-based compensation 613 284
Change in statutory rates (354) 14
Other (19) 10
Total deferred tax expense 3,132 45,407

Deferred tax assets and liabilties are attributable to the following:

(E000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Deferred tax liabilities:
PP&E and E&E assets (119,783) (101,5569)
Fair value of risk management contracts (10,584) (23,415)
Senior notes (646) (1.049)
Convertible debentures (134) (485)
Other — (382)
(131,147) (126,870)
Less deferred tax assets:
Mon-capital losses 103,312 103,327
Decommissioning obligation 14,462 12,639
Finance costs 2,241 3,132
Other 228 —
Met deferred tax liability (10,904) (7.772)

The Corporation has non-capital losses of $382.7 million which expire in the years 2026 through 2035, The Corporation has
determined that it is likely that these losses will be utilized against future taxable income. Total tax pools at December 31,

2018 were $1.4 billion (December 31, 2017 — $1.4 billion).
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13. DECOMMISSIONING OBLIGATION

(E000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Ealance, beginning of year 45,811 29,857
UGR acquisition (note 4) — 1.083
Provisions 4 451 8032
Revisions 1,172 5,841
Accretion 1,131 BEE
Balance, end of year 53,565 46,811

The Corporation's decommissioning obligation results from its ownership interest in petroleum and natural gas assetls
including well sites and facilities. The total decommissioning obligation is estimated based onthe Corporation's net ownership
interest in all wells and facilities, estimated costs to reclaim and abandon these wells and facilities and the estimated timing
of the costs to be incurred in future years. The Corporation has estimated the net present value of the decommissioning
obligation based on an undiscounted total future liability of $116.3 millien, compared to $106.0 million at December 31, 2017,
with payments expected to be made over the next 10 to 48 years. The discount factor, being the risk-free rate related to the
liability at December 31, 2018, was 2.2%, compared to 2.3% at December 31, 2017, and the inflation rate was 2% at both
December 31, 2018 and 2017.

14. SHARE CAPITAL

(a)

(b}

Authorized

The Corporation has an unlimited number of Commeon Shares and an unlimited number of preferred shares ("Preferred
Shares") authorized for issuance. At December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 there were 160,995,692 Common
Shares outstanding. At December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 there were no Preferred Shares outstanding.

Cn April 5, 2017, Painted Pony completed a public offering of 19.8 million Common Shares at a price of $5.60 per
Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $111.0 million (including the exercise in full of the over-
allotment option granted to the underwmters).

On May 16, 2017, the Corporation issued 41.0 million Common Shares to acquire all of the issued and outstanding
shares of UGR (see note 4). At the closing date of the UGR acquisition, the Common Shares were ascribed a fair value
of $5.37 per Common Share issued, resulting in total share consideration of $220.2 million (gross of share issue costs).

The Common Shares entitle the holder thereof to one vote for every share held. There are no fixed dividends payable
on the Commeon Shares. Inthe event of the liguidation or dissolution of the Corporation, the Common Shares are entitled
to receive, on a pro rata basis, all assets of the Corporation as are distributable to the holders of shares.

Stock options

The Corporation has a stock option plan ("the Stock Option Plan™) pursuant to which options to purchase Common
Shares are granted to officers and employees of the Corporation. Stock options are granted at the VWAP of the Common
Shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant, and have a five-year term. Stock options granted
vest as to one-third on each of the first, second and third anniversanes of the grant date.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of stock options are as follows:
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2018

Weighted Average

Exercise Price (§) Number

As at December 31, 2016 7.45 8622517

Granted 4,42 3,376,650
Exercised 4.14 (17,500)
Faorfeited 10,71 (179,400)
Expired 10,16 (1,503,900)

As at December 31, 2017 6.01 10,288, 367

Granted 2,85 2,042,200
Forfeited 5.02 (1,872,992)
Expired 8.10 (1,542,500}

As at December 31, 2018 5.09 8925075

The following table summarnzes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2018:

Number of Weighted Average Mumber of Weighted Average
Stock Options Exercise Remaining Life Stock Options Exercise
Qutstanding  Price Range ($) (Years) Exercisable Price ($)
1,791,400 1.82-313 4.0 — —
1,504,125 314 -4.20 28 768,116 3.97
1,581,950 421-428 1.9 1,581,850 4.26
2,033,800 429-540 34 677 BE6 473
2,014,000 541-14.14 04 1,954, 500 9.27
8,925 075 5.09 26 4 G82 432 6.24

The Corporation accounts for its stock options using the fair value methed. In accordance with the Stock Option Plan,

stock options have an exercise price equal to the fair value of the Commaon Shares at the date of grant.

The weighted-average fair values of the stock options granted and the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option

pricing model were as follows:

Years ended December 31

2018 2017
Fair value per stock option (8) 1.26 2.00
Volatility (%) 53 51
Life (years) 5 5
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.80 1.34

A forfeiture rate of 8.7% was used when measuring share-based compensation during the year ended December 31,

2018, compared to 9.0% during the year ended December 31, 2017,

The components of share-based compensation expense are presented in the table below:

($000s) Years ended December 31,
2018 2017
Share-based compensation 2,757 2,205
Share unit expense (recovery) (note 15) 20 (1,724)
Total 2777 481
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15. SHARE UNIT PLANS

(a) Deferred Share Units

The Corporation has a deferred share unit plan, whereby DSUs are issued to members ofthe Board and eligible executive
officers. Each DSU is a notional unit equal in value to one Common Share, which entitles the holder to a cash payment
upan redemption. DSUs vest at the end of the financial quarter in which they are granted, but can only be converted to
cash upon the holder ceasing to be a director andfor executive officer of the Corporation, The expense associated with
the DSU plan is determined based on the 20-day VWAP of Common Shares at the grant date. The expense is recognized
in the statement of operations in the quarter in which the units are granted, with a corresponding DSU liability recorded
as a current liability in the statement of financial position. At period end dates, the D3U liability is adjusted based on the
20-day VWAP of Commeon Shares.

(b} Restricted Share Units

The Corporation has a restricted share unit plan, whereby RSUs are issued to executive officers and eligible employees.
Each RSU is a notional unit equal in value to one Common Share, which entitles the holder to a cash payment upon
redemption. RSUs vestin three equal installments on the first, second, and third anniversaries of the grant date, at which
time the holder is eligible to receive a cash payment equal to the number of vested awards multiplied by the fair market
value, The expense associated with the RSU plan is determined based on the 20-day VWAP of Common Shares at the
grant date. The expense is recognized in the statement of operations over the vesting period, with a corresponding RSU
liability recorded as a current liability in the statement of financial position. At period end dates, the RSU liability is
adjusted based on the 20-day VWAP of Common Shares.

(c) Preferred Share Units

The Corporation has a performance share unit plan, whereby PSUs are issued to eligible executive officers, Each PSU
is a notional unit equal in value to one Common Share, which entitles the holder to a cash payment upon redemption.
PSUs vest upon the third anniversary of the grant date, at which time the holder is eligible to receive a cash payment
equal to the number of vested awards multiplied by the fair market value. The unit value is adjusted for a performance
multiplier which can range from 0 to 2 and is dependent on the performance of the Corporation for a predefined period.
The expense associated with the PSU plan is determined based on the 20-day VWAP of Common Shares at the grant
date. The expense is recognized in the statement of operations over the vesting period, with a comesponding PSU liability
recorded as a current liability in the statement of financial position. At period end dates, the PSU liability is adjusted
based on the 20-day VWAP of Common Shares.

The following table summanzes information related to the Corporation’s deferred share unit plan, restricted share unit plan,
and performance share unit plan:

Deferred Restricted Preferred

Share Units  Share Units  Share Units Total
As at December 31, 2016 352 689 — —_ 352,689
Granted 407,762 222,630 303,200 934,202
Pricr accrual reversal (70,347 —_ —_ (70,347)
As at December 31, 2017 690,104 222,630 303,200 1,216,634
Granted 400,703 413,100 482,000 1,295,803
Exercised (141,331) (85,070} — (226,401)
Forfeited — (64,160} (126,000) (180,160)
As at December 31, 2018 949 476 486,500 529,200 2,095,876
($000s)
Walue of share unit liability as at
December 31, 2018 1,448 410 205 2,063
Value of share unit liability as at
December 31, 2017 1,797 159 48 2,004

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Corporation capitalized $0.5 million {2017 - $0.3 million).
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Corporation's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks that arise as a result of its exploration, development,
production and financing activities. These include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board oversees the establishment and execution of the Corporation’s risk management framework, Management has
implemented and monitors compliance with risk management policies. The Corporation's risk management policies are
established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Corporation, to set appropriate risk limits and contrals and to monitor
risks and adherence to market conditions and the Corporation's activities,

(a)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as commadity prices, foreign exchange rates and interest
rates, will affect the Corporation's income or the value of the financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Matural gas prices obtained by the Corporation are influenced by both US and Canadian supply and demand. The
exchange rate effect cannot be quantified but generally an increase in the value of the Canadian dollar as compared to
the U.S. dollar will reduce the prices received by the Corporation for its petroleum and natural gas sales. Commodity
price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in commedity prices.
Commeodity prices for petroleum and natural gas are impacted by not only the relationship between the Canadian and
nited States dollars, but also upen world political and economic events that dictate the levels of supply and demand.

The Corporation’s production is usually sold through near term sales contracts with prices fixed at the time of transfer
of custody or on the basis of a monthly average market price. The Corporation, hawever, may give consideration in
certain circumstances to the appropriateness of entering into long term fixed price marketing contracts. The majority of
the Corporation's natural gas and NGLs are sold to one purchaser monthly on a best-efforts basis.

The Corporation uses financial derivatives and physical delivery sales contracts to mitigate some of the exposure to
commodity price risk, and provide a level of stability to operating cash flows which enables the Corporation to fund its
capital development program. The use of these transactions is governed by and is subject to risk management policies
established by the Board.

These instruments are not used for trading or speculative purposes. The Corporation has not designated its financial
derivative contracts as effective accounting hedges, even though the Corporation considers all commodity contracts to
he effective economic hedges. As a result, all such commeodity contracts are recorded at fair value on the statement of
financial position, with changes in the fair value being recognized as an unrealized gain or loss in the statement of
operations.

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are required to be classified into a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
used to measure the fair value. The Corporation's risk management contracts are valued using Level 2 inputs. Assets
and liabilities in Level 2 are based on valuation models and techniques where the significant inputs are derived from
quoted indices.

The following is a summary of all commodity risk management contracts in place as at December 31, 2018

Financial AECO Natural Gas Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (GJid) (CDN$/GJ)
AECO Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 10,000 232
AECO Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 10,000 1.98
AECO Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2019 8,000 2.66
AECO Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2019 10,000 262
AECO Call Option Sold January 2019 - December 2018 10,000 2.80
AECO Call Option Sold January 2019 - December 2019 15,000 293
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Financial Westcoast Station 2 Natural Gas Contracts

Volume Price
Options traded Term (GJid) (CDN$/GJ)
Westcoast Station 2 Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2019 12,000 235
Westcoast Station 2 Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - September 2019 10,000 2.30
Westcoast Station 2 Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - September 2019 5,000 2.34
Westcoast Station 2 Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 10,000 245
Financial NYMEX MNatural Gas Contracts
Velume Price
Options traded Term (Mmbtu/d) (US$/Mmbtu)
LUS0 Nymex Fixed Price January 2019 - March 2019 5,000 4,39
USD Mymex Fixed Price January 2019 - December 2019 5,000 322
USD Mymex Fixed Price April 2019 - October 2019 5,000 2.85
Financial Dawn Natural Gas Contracts
Volume Price
Options traded Term (GJid) (CDN$IGJ)
Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 10,000 3.47
Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2018 10,000 3.50
Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2019 5,000 3.14
Financial Dawn Natural Gas Contracts
Volume Price
Options traded Term (MMBtuid) (USS/MMBtu)
USD Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2018 - March 2018 5,000 3.29
USD Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2019 5,000 4.40
USD Dawn Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 10,000 253
USD Dawn Fixed Price Swap April 2019 - December 2019 5,000 252
Financial Sumas Natural Gas Contracts
Volume Price
Options traded Term (MMBtuid) (USS/MMBtu)
USD Sumas Fixed Price Swap January 2018 - March 2018 10,000 317
USD Sumas Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2018 5,000 5.00
Financial AECO Station 2 Differential Contracts
Price
Volume  (AECO TA basis
Options traded Term (GJid) CDN$/GJ)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap January 2019 - December 2019 10,000 (0.25)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap January 2019 - October 2020 10,000 (0.32)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap January 2019 - October 2020 20,000 (0.32)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap January 2019 - August 2021 20,000 (0.29)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap April 2019 - October 2019 10,000 (0.24)
AECO-Station 2 Basis Swap MNovember 2019 - October 2020 10,000 (0.33)
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Financial NYMEX Basis Differential Contracts

Price
Volume (NYMEX basis
Options traded Term (MMBtu/d) US$/MMBtu)
NYMEX-Sumas Basis Swap January 2019 - December 2019 5,000 (0.60)
NYMEX-AECO Basis Swap April 2019 - October 2019 10,000 (1.45)
NYMEX-AECO Basis Swap April 2019 - September 2021 10,000 (1.14)
NYMEX-AECO Basis Swap April 2020 - October 2020 10,000 (1.45)
NYMEX-AECO Basis Swap October 2021 - March 2023 5,000 (1.05)
NYMEX-AECO Basis Swap October 2021 - March 2023 5,000 (1.08)
NYMEX-Dawn Basis Swap January 2019 - March 2019 5,000 0.26
MNYMEX-Dawn Basis Swap April 2018 - December 2019 10,000 (0.20)
MY MEX-Dawn Basis Swap January 2020 - December 2020 5,000 (0.06)
MNYMEX-Dawn Basis Swap January 2020 - December 2020 5,000 (0.07)
Financial WTI Crude Oil Contracts
Volume Price
Options traded Term (Bblid) (CDNS$/Bbl)
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - June 2019 500 80.30
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2018 - December 20139 200 70.20
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 500 70.20
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 20139 230 72.30
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 250 74.00
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 250 74.80
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 500 77.00
WTI Fixed Price Swap July 2019 - December 2019 500 80.75
WTI Fixed Price Swap January 2020 - December 2020 500 75.80
Financial Propane Contracts
Volume Price
Options traded Term (GAL/M) (US$/GAL)
Conway Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - March 2018 10,500 0.85
Conway Fixed Price Swap January 2019 - December 2019 10,500 0.67

In addition to the commodity risk management contracts discussed above, the Corporation has entered into physical delivery
sales contracts to manage commaodity risk. These contracts are considered normal sales contracts and are not recorded at
fair value in the financial statements.

The Corporation has the following foreign exchange risk management contracts in place as at December 31, 2018

Financial Foreign Exchange Contracts

Notional Amount

Reference Currency Term (USD 000sfmonth) Strike Rate
UsD January 2019 - March 2019 2,000 1.35
Lsh January 2018 - December 201% 1,000 1.33

The Corporation periodically enters into USD cross currency swap basis transactions related to LIBOR borrowings, which
results in a reduction to interest expense paid on borrowings on the credit facility. As at December 31, 2018 the following
cross currency basis swap was outstanding:

Contract Quantity Type of Contract Term / Expiry Contract Price

£147 Million Cross currency basis swap January 28, 2019 £1.335 CADMUSD
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Changes in the price assumptions can have a significant effect on the fair value of the derivative assets and liabilities and
thereby impact income. For financial instruments in place at December 31, 2018, it is estimated that a $0.10 per mef change
in forward natural gas prices used to calculate the fair value of natural gas derivatives at December 31, 2018 would result
in a $1.9 million change in income and comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018, It is estimated that
a $1.00 per bbl change in the forward crude oil prices used to calculate the fair value of crude il derivatives at December 31,
2018 would result in a $0.9 million change in income and comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018

Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Approximately 27% of the Corporation's 2018 petroleum and natural gas sales were denominated in USD.
A 1% change in the CAD/USD exchange rate, on the Corporation's USD denominated sales, would result in a $0.7 million
change inincome and comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018. The remaining 73% ofthe Corporation's
2018 petroleum and natural gas sales were denominated in Canadian dollars, Canadian commodity prices are influenced
by fluctuations in the Canadian to USD exchange rate which are not captured in the foreign currency exchange income
sensitivity above.

Interest rate nsk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. The Corporation
is exposed to interest rate fluctuations on its bank debt which bears a floating rate of interest. Forthe year ended December 31,
2018, itis estimated that a 1.0% change in interest rates would result in a change to income and comprehensive income of
$1.3 million.

Financial assets and liabilities are presented on a net basis if the Corporation has a legal nght to offset and intends to either
seftle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. The Corporation offsets financial assets
and liabilities when the counterparty, currency and timing of settlement are the same. The following tables provide a summanry
ofthe Corporation’s offsetting financial derivative positions, and how risk management contracts are classified onthe statement
of financial position, respectively.

(F000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Gross in-the-money risk management contracts 48,325 92,200
Gross out-of-the-money risk management contracts (8,124) (5,479)
Met fair value of risk management contracts 39201 86,721

($000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Current assets 35,215 65,016
MNon-current assets 7,350 22,552
Current liabilities (530} (553)
MNon-current liabilities (2,834) (294)
Met fair value of risk management contracts 39,201 86,721

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrurment fails to
meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Corporation's receivables from joint venture partners and
petroleum and natural gas purchasers. The Corporation's maximum exposure to credit risk at December 31, 2018 and
2017 is as follows:

($000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Accounts receivable 95,532 32,115
Fair value of risk management contracts 42 565 &7, 568
Total 98,087 126,683

2018 | PAINTED PONY ENERGY LTD 55



56

(c)

Accounts receivable
All of the Corporation's operations are conducted in Canada. The Corporation’s exposure to credit risk is influenced

mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.

Receivables from petroleum and natural gas purchasers are normally collected on the 25th day of the month following
production. The Corporation’s policy to mitigate credit risk associated with these balances is to establish marketing
relationships with large purchasers. The Corporation historically has not experienced any collection issues with its
petroleum and natural gas purchasers. Receivables from joint venture partners are typically collected within ane to three
menths of the joint venture bill being issued. The Corporation does not typically obtain collateral from petroleum and
natural gas purchasers or joint venture partners

The Corporation does not anticipate any default as it transacts with creditworthy customers and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these customers. The lifetime ECL allowances related to the Corporation's
accounts receivable were nominal as at and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,

The breakdown of accounts receivable at the reporting date by type of customer was:

($000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Petroleum and natural gas revenue 0,778 28,946
Financial risk management contracts 4,390 7,805
Joint interest 281 282
Other 82 2,082
Total 55,532 39,115

The Corporation has three primary purchasers of natural gas and NGLs; these purchasers accounted for $49.9 million
of accounts receivable at December 31, 2018, compared to $23.8 million from one purchaser as at December 31, 2017.
As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Corporation's accounts receivable is aged as follows:

($000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Less than 30 days 55,364 38 227
From 31 - 90 days 108 7
More than 90 days G2 117
Total 55532 39,115

Derivative Financial Instruments
The use of financial swap agreements involves a degree of credit risk that the Corporation manages through its risk
management policies which are designed to limit eligible counterparties to those with investment grade credit ratings or

hetter.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The
Corporation's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, to the extent possible, that itwill always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or

risking damage to the Corporation's reputation.

Management closely meonitors cash flow requirements to ensure that it has sufficient borrowing capacity to meet
operational and financial ebligations currently and in the foreseeable future; this excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. To achieve this objective, the Corporation
prepares annual capital expenditure budgets, which are regularly monitored and updated as considered necessary.
Further, the Corporation utilizes authority for expenditures on both operated and non-operated projects to further manage
capital expenditures. The Corporation also typically collects its petroleurn and natural gas revenues from most properies
on the 25" of each month.

To facilitate the capital expenditure program, the Corporation has an aggregate of $400 millien in syndicated credit
facilties at December 31, 2018 compared to 3450 million at December 31, 2017, which are reviewed semi-annually by
its lenders.
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(d} Capital management
The Corporation's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Corporation manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying petroleum and natural
gas assets. The Corporation considers its capital structure to include shareholders' equity, loans and borrowings and
working capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Corporation may issue shares or debt and adjust
its capital spending to manage current and projected debt levels.

The Corporation monitors capital based on the total debt to cash flow ratio, on a trailing four fiscal quarter basis. This
ratio is calculated as total debt, defined as cutstanding loans and borrowings plus or minus working capital, excluding
fair value of risk management contracts, divided by cash flow from operations before changes in non-cash working capital
and decommissioning expenditures for the most recent calendar four quarters. In order to facilitate the management of
this ratio, the Corporation prepares annual capital expenditure budgets, which are updated as necessary depending on
varying factors including current and forecast prices, successful capital deployment and general industry conditions. The
annual and updated budgets are approved by the Board of Directors of the Corporation

As a result of shifting from an exploration-focused program to a development-focused program, the Ceorporation has
adapted its approach to capital management to include low cost bank debt and introduced fixed term debt to ensure
financial liquidity, as part of the capital structure going forward. The Corporation is not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements. The syndicated credit facilities are subject to a periodic review of the borrowing base which is
directly impacted by the value of the petreleum and natural gas reserves.

17. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Corporation’'s accounting pelicies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement andfor disclosure purposes
based on the following methods, When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values
is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability,

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Exploration and Evaluation Assets

The fair values of PP&E and E&E assets recognized in an acquisition are based on market values. The fair values of
PP&E and E&E are the estimated amounts for which they could be exchanged on the acquisition date between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm's length transaction after proper marketing wherein the paries had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. The fair value of petroleum and natural gas interests (included in
PP&E) and E&E assets is estimated with reference to the discounted cash flows expected to be derived from petroleum
and natural gas production, based on externally prepared reserve reponts. The risk-adjusted discount rate is specific to
the asset with reference to general market conditions.

(b} Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, Bank Debt, Senior Notes and Convertible
Debentures
The fair value of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and bank debt are estimated as the
present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. At December 31, 2018
and December 31, 2017, the fair value of these balances approximated their carrying value, Bank debt has a floating
rate of interest and therefore the carrying value approximates the fairvalue, The fair value of the senior notes fluctuates
in response to changes in the market rates of interest payable on similarinstruments. At December 31, 2018, the carrying
value of the senior notes and convertible debentures approximated fair value,

(c) Stock Options
The fair value of employee stock options is measured using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Measurement inputs
include share price on measurement date, exercise price ofthe instrument, expected volatility, weighted average expected
life of the instruments (based on historical experience and general stock option holder behavior), expected dividends
and the risk-free interest rate.

(d) Derivatives

Measurement
The Corporation classifies the fair value of derivative transactions according to the following hierarchy based on the
amount of observable inputs used to value the instrument.

(i) Level 1. Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or iabilities as of the reporting date.

Active markets are those in which transactions cccur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.
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(i} Level 2: Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1. Prices are either
directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date. Level 2 valuations are based on inputs, including
quoted forward prices for commaodities, time value and volatility factors, which can be substantially observed
or corroborated in the marketplace,

(iii) Lewvel 3: Valuations in this level are those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data,

The fair value of commodity price risk management contracts is determined by discounting the difference between the
contracted prices and published forward price curves as at the date of the statement of financial position, using the
remaining contracted petroleum and natural gas volumes and risk-free interest rate (based on published government
rates). The fairvalue of foreign exchange contracts is determined based on the difference between the contracted forward
rate and current forward rates, using the remaining settlement amount. The Corporation’s commodity price contracts,
foreign exchange contracts, senior notes and convertible debentures are valued using Level 2 of the hierarchy.

The fair value of DSUs, PSUs and RSUs is measured upon grant and at each period end date, using the 20-day VWAP
of Common Shares. The Corporation’s DSUs, PSUs and RSUs are valued using Level 1 of the hierarchy.

18. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION

18

The Corporation is party to a series of agreements relating to the development of processing infrastructure for natural gas
and NGLs. The facilities and related pipeline infrastructure included in these agreements have been recorded as a finance
lease. The Corporation has recorded the asset, with a corresponding obligation on the statement of financial position, Cwver
the course of the 20-year lease, there is a capital fee, which includes the finance expense and amortization of the obligation.

The cost of the facilities and related pipeline infrastructure capitalized was approximately 3490 million. Total expected
payments based on annual take or pay volumes, including both the principal and financing components, are reflected in the
table below.

After 1 year
but not more More than

(000s) Within 1 year than five years five years Total
Processing 53,785 285,500 574,624 913,809
Transportation 9,902 53258 169,281 232,441
Total 63,687 338,758 743,905 1,146,350
Principal 5 680 66,654 417 464 4849 798
COMMITMENTS

{E000s) 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Thereafter Total
Transportation and processing 02,362 118,236 136617 135919 114915 1,450,013 2,048,062
Interest on senior notes 12,750 12,750 12,750 0563 — — 47,813
Interest on convertible debentures 3,290 3,250 2,438 — — — 8,938
Office leases and other 1,682 1,579 1,563 1,347 — — 6,071
Total commitments 109,944 135815 153,368 146,829 114,915 1,450,013 2,110,884

Transportation commitments include contracts to transport natural gas and MGLs through third-party owned pipeline systems
in Morth America. Processing commitments include contracts to process natural gas and NGLs through third-party owned
gas processing facilities in British Columbia. Interest on senior notes includes quarterly interest on senior notes. Interest on
convertible debentures includes gquarterly interest on convertible debentures, Office leases include the Corporation's
contractual obligations for office space.

The Corporation has certain lease arrangements that are reflected in the commitments table above, which were entered into
in the normal course of operations. All leases, other than the facility finance leases, have been treated as operating leases
whereby the lease payments are included in operating expenses or general and administrative expenses depending on the
nature of the lease.

2018 | PAINTED PONY ENERGY LTD



20. REVENUE

Painted Pony produces natural gas and NGLs from its assets in the Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin, specifically in
Martheastern British Columbia, The Corporation sells its production pursuant to fixed and variable price physical delivery
contracts. Under the contracts, the Corporation is required to deliver a fixed or variable volume of natural gas or NGLs to the
contract counterparty. The transaction price for variable priced contracts is based on a benchmark commeodity price, adjusted
for quality, location and other factors, whereby each component of the pricing formula can be fixed or variable depending on
the contract terms.

Production revenue is recognized when the Corporation gives up control of a unit of production atthe delivery point in accordance
with the terms of the contract. Revenue recognized is based on the agreed transaction price and the volumes delivered. Any
variability in the transaction price relates specifically to the Corporation's efforts to transfer production, and is therefore
recognized in the penod in which the variability relates. The Corporation does not have any factors considered to be constraining
in the recognition of revenue for variable pricing factors.

Contract terms have lengths varying from one to 14 years, with delivery taking place throughout the term of the contracts.
Production revenues are normally collected on the 25th day of the month following production.

The Corporation’s revenue was generated entirely in British Columbia, and the production was sold in British Columbia, Alberta,
Ontario, and Washington, primarily to three major purchasers. The three purchasers individually accounted for more than 10%
of, and together represented 87% of sales for the year ended December 31, 2018 (2017 - 100%).

These three purchasers individually represented more than 10% of, and together represented 89% of accounts receivable at
December 31, 2018 (December 31, 2017 - 74%). The following table represents the Corporation’'s petroleum and natural gas
sales disaggregated by product:

($000s) Years ended December 31,

2018 2017
Matural gas 283145 183,030
Matural gas liquids 111,227 66,156
Total 404,372 249 186

Under certain marketing arrangements, the Corporation transfers title of its natural gas production to a third party marketing
company who subsequently redelivers the natural gas production by ulilizing the Corporation's transportation pipeline capacity,
Under the terms of these contracts, the Corporation has assigned a portion of their pipeline capacity to the marketing company
for the specified contract term. The marketing revenue stream related to these assigned transportation contracts represents
23% (2017 - 0%) of total natural gas revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018,

At times, the Corporation purchases commodity products from third parties to fulfill sales commitments and subseguently sells
these products to its purchasers. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Corporation purchased commadity products
for $1.7 million {2017 - $0.5 million), and subsequently sold them for $2.5 million (2017 - $0.4 million).

21. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

(a) Key Management Personnel Compensation
Key management personnel are persons who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Corporation, directly or indirectly. This includes all directors and executives of the Carporation. Short-
term compensation includes salaries, bonuses and short-term benefits paid to executives and fees paid to directors.
Share-based compensation represents amortization of the expense associated with stock options, PSUs and DSUs
granted to executives and directors.

($000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Short-term compensation 5,629 5 454
Share-based compensation 2,505 3rg
Total 8,334 5833
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(b) Presentation in Statements of Cash Flows
Changes in non-cash working capital are comprised of:

(000s) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Sourcef{use) of cash:
Accounts receivable (16,417) (9,547)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (565) (555)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilties (15,118) 12,028
Mon-cash working capital on business combination — (2,981)
Share unit liability 59 (1,397)
(32,041) (2,452)
Operating activities (5,604) (2.287)
Investing activities (3,924) (4,195)
Financing activities (22,513) 4,030
(32,041) (2,452)
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